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1.-:i admin@psv-co.com 

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

I\.. (02i s 994-3984 

IQ 9'" Fir. Unit C MARC 2000 Tower 
1973 Taft Ave. cor. San Andres St. 
Malate, Manila 1004 

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Unit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit. 
Hipodromo Street Circuit Makati 
Brgy. Carmona Makati City 

We have audited the financial statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION (the 
Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024, on which we have rendered the attached report 
dated April 15, 2025_ 

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we arc stating that the said 
Company has a total number of seven (7) shareholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares 
each of the Company's Capital stock as of December 31, 2024, as disclosed in Note 21 of the 
Financial Statements. 

PEREZ. SESE, VILLA & CO. 

BY: 
-~a.,.,,.r:, 

~~- ALMA C. SES 

1
.u.NAGING PAR ER 

CPA License No. 0054588 
Tax Identification No. 212-955-173-000 
PTR No. 2093955, Issued on January 6, 2025, Manila City 
SEC Accreditation No: 

Partner - 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December I, 2022, 
valid for five ( 5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements 
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1, 2022, 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements 

BIR Accreditation No. 06-002735-001-2024, issued on April 12, 2024, 
valid for three (3) years until April 11, 2027 

IC Accreditation No. 
Partner -54588-lC, Group B, issued on December 3, 2020 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 
Finn -0222-IC, Group B, issued on December 3. 2020 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0222, issued on October 13, 2023 valid until October 12, 2026 

Manila, Philippines 
April 15, 2025 

·-- --
AUDITING - ACCOUNTING-CONSULTANCY- FINANCIAL ADVISORY -TAXATION- BOOKKEEPING-DUE DILIGENCE 



PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
CU ALO PING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Unit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, 
Hipodromo Street Circuit Makati. 
Brgy. Carmona Makati City 

1.:3 admin@psv-co.com 

I'-- (02i s 994-3984 

I 9th Fir. Unit C MARC 2000 Tower 

Q 1973 Taft Ave. cor. San Andres St. 
Malate, Manila 1004 

We have audited the financial statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION (the 
Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with Philippine Standards on 
Auditing on which we have rendered an unqualified opinion dated April 15. 2025. Our audit was 
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The supplementary schedules I to Vlll, as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission under 
the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68. are presented for purpose of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements_ Such infonnation are the responsibility of 
management and have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, arc fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

PEREZ, SESE, VlLLA & CO . 

BY: 
... a .. ,,ar 

~~ ALMA C. SESE J' ~ .AGING PARTNE 

CPA License No. 0054588 
Tax Identification No. 212-955-173-000 
PTR No. 2093955, Issued on January 6, 2025, Manila City 
SEC Accreditation No: 

Partner - 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December 1, 2022, 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements 
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1, 2022, 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statemi;:nts 

BIR Accreditation No. 06-002735-001-2024, issued on April 12, 2024, 
valid for lhree (3) years until April 11, 2027 

IC Accreditation No. 
Partner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December 3, 2020 
val id for five ( 5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 
Pinn -0222-IC, Group B, issued on December 3, 2020 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 

BONPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0222, issued on October 13, 2023 valid until October 12. 2026 

Manila. Philippines 
April 15. 2025 

AUDITING - ACCOUNTING-CONSULTANCY - FINANClAL ADVISORY -TAXATION - BOOKKEEPING- DUE DILIGENCE 





Cualoping Securities Corporation 
Member: Philippine Stock Exchange, lnc. 

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN 

The Management of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION is responsible for all 
information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended 
December 31 , 2024. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations 
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same 
reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and representations 
contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the 
value added tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other 
tax returns. 

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with the 
books and records of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION complete and correct in all 
material respects. Management likewise affirms that: 

(a) the.Annual .Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the· National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other 
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue; 

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial 
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax 
return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and maintained in 
the Company's books and records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations 
No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances; 

(c) the CUALOPING SECURJTIES CORPORATION has filed all applicable tax returns, 
reports and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting 
period, and all taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been 
paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith. 

BY: 
CUALOPING SECURJTIES CORPORATION 

. ~ l .r 
Chairman of the Board 

, _,,.· 

GLENN . MACA VINT A 
President Treasurer 

C. 1207 • Exchan!!C Xos. 7791-4378 * 7940-6082 Fa, 7750-72-70 OJlicc Nos. 7750-7!-70 * 8522-0293 
Unit 061 Level 3 A)<ila Malls Circuit, llippodromoSt., Brgy. Carmona, :\lakati 1ty •. 



PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Unit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, 
Hipodromo Street Circuit Makati 
Brgy. Carmona Makati City 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

l!:l admin@psv-co.com 

I\. ,021 s 994-3984 

IQ 9'' Fir. Unit C MARC 2000 Tower 
1973 Taft Ave. cor. San Andres St 
Malate, Manila 1004 

We have audited the financial statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
( the Company), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2024 and 
2023 and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and 
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
material accounting policy infonnation. 

In our opinion, the accompanying finan.cial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of 
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Respo11sibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Fi11a11cial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance arc responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

AUDITING - ACCOUNTING - CONSULTANCY - FINANCIAL ADVISORY -TAXATION - BOOKKEEPING - DUE DILIGENCE 



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1TOr, and to issue an auditor' s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management' s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Our audit were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The supplementary infonnation for the year ended December 31, 2024 required by 
the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required pat1 of the basic financial statements prepared in 
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of 
management. The supplementary infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and. in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO. 

,-,ca...~(' 
ANAGING PARTN R 

BY: }A. ALMA C. SESE 

CPA License No. 0054588 
Tax Identification No. 212-955-173-000 
PTR No. 2093955, Issued on January 6, 2025, Manila City 
SEC Accreditation No: 

Partner - 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December l, 2022, 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements 
Finn - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1, 2022, 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of2022 to 2026 financial statements 

BIR Accreditation No.06-002735-001-2024. issued on April 12, 2024, 
valid for three (3) years until April I I, 2027 

IC Accreditation No. 
Partner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December 3, 2020 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 
Firm -0222-lC. Group 8, issued on December 3, 2020 
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements 

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0222. issued on October 13, 2023 valid until October 12, 2026 

Manila, Philippines 
April 15, 2025 



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Securi!l: Position {2024) Securi!l Position (20231 
Notes 2024 Long Short 2023 Long Shon 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,5,6 ,. 14,755,081 p p I' 13.854.562 I' 1' 
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 4,7 43,651,570 43,651,570 40)83:134 40,783.134 
Receivables from customers and other brokers. net 4,5,8 783,903 43,602,688 976,383 14,030.476 
Other receivables 4,5,9 124,740 120,591 
Prepayments and other current assets 4,5,11 2,369,879 2,337.556 

Total Current Assets 61,685,173 87,254,258 58,072.226 54.813.610 

Non-Current Assets 
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income 4,10 33,456,000 33,456,000 34,680,000 34.680,000 
Property and equipment, net 4.5,13 18,534,787 18.616.723 
Intangible asset, net 4,5.14 354,037 402,223 
Deferred tax asset, net 4,5,27 5,723,261 4,767,301 
Right of use asset 4,5,28 60,004 
Refundable deposits 4.5,/5 291,044 185.895 

Total Noa-Current Assets 58,359,129 33,456,000 58,712,146 34.680,000 

TOTAL ASSETS ,. 120,044,302 120,710,258 p I' 116,784,372 !' 89.493.610 

Securities in Vault, Transrer Ortice and Philippine Depository and Trust Corp. p ,. 5,675,902,430 I' I' 6,099,241.749 

LIABILITrES AND EQUITY 

Current Liabilities 
Payable to customers 4,16 p 18,722,548 ,. 5,555,192,172 ,. I' 14,308,827 I' 6.009,748,139 I' 
Payable to clearing house 4,17 147,990 129,900 
Lease liability 4,28 65,600 
Mortgage payable - cu.rrenl 4,20 3,017,803 2,770,060 
Other payables 4,18 418,541 472,577 
Other current liabilities 4,19 25,110 75,610 

Total Current Liabilities 22,331,992 5,555,192,172 17,822.574 6,009,748, 139 

Non-Current Liability 
Mortgage payable - noncurrent 4,20 4,757,284 7,779,031 
Secu.rity deposits 4.28 184,646 

Total Non-current Liabilities 4,941,930 7,779,031 

Total Liabilities 27,273,922 5,555,192,172 25,601,605 6.009, 748. I 39 

Equity 
Share capital 4,21 57,250,000 56,250,000 
Revaluation increment -1.21 29,382,400 30,300,400 
Retained earnings .f,21 6,137,980 4,632,367 

Total Equity 92,770,380 91,182,767 

TOTAL LlABlLlTIES AND EQUITY p 120,044,302 p 5,675,902,430 ,. 5,675,902,430 , I I 6,784,372 " 6.099.241.749 I' 6,099,241.749 

(See accompany;ng Notes lo flnanc,o/ Statements} 



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Notes 2024 

INCOME 
Commission income 4,22 p 243,267 

Dividend income 4,7,/0 3,463,347 

Gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL, net 4,7 

Unrealized loss on financial assets at FVTPL, net 4.7 2,868,436 

Total 6,575,050 

DIRECT COSTS 4,23 (1,316,423) 

GROSS INCOME (LOSS) 5,258,627 

OPERATING EXPENSES 4,24 (3,505,706) 

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION 1,752,921 

OTHER INCOME 4,25 217,636 

FINANCE COSTS 4,20,28 (1,114,904) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 855,653 

INCOME TAX BENEFITS 4,27 

Current 
Deferred (649,960) 

(649,960) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1,505,613 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 4, 10,21 

Changes in fair value of available for sale financial assets (1,224,000) 

Tax effect 306,000 

(918,000) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) p 587,613 

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements) 

2023 

I' 345,208 
3,224,558 

4,860 
(4,524,230) 

(949,604) 

(1,317,982) 

(2,267,586) 

(3,185,069) 

(5,452,655) 

128,312 

(1,076,384) 

(6,400,727) 

(2,344,352) 

(2,344,352) 

(4,056,375) 

2,448,000 
(612,000) 

1,836,000 

I' (2,220,375) 



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Notes 2024 

SHARE CAP IT AL 4,21 
Balance at beginning of the year 56,250,000 
Issuance 1,000,000 

Balance at end of the year 57,250,000 

REVALUATION INCREMENT 4,21 
Balance at beginning of the year 30,300,400 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year (918,000) 

Balance at end of the year 29,382,400 

RETAINED EARNINGS 4,21 

Unappropriated 
Balance at beginning of the year 620,092 
Net income (loss) for the year 1,505,613 
Appropriation for the year per SRC Rule 49.1 (150,561) 

Balance at end of the year 1,975,144 

Appropriated 
Balance at beginning of the year 4,012,275 
Appropriation for the year per SRC Rule 49. l 150,561 

Balance at end of the year 4,162,836 

Total Retained Earnings 6,137,980 

TOT AL EQUITY p 92,770,380 

(See accompanying Notes to flnancial Statements) 

2023 

p 55,250,000 
1,000,000 

56,250,000 

28,464,400 
1,836,000 

30,300,400 

4,676,467 
(4,056,375) 

620,092 

4,012,275 

4,012,275 

4,632,367 

p 91,182,767 



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Notes 2024 2023 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Net gain (loss) before tax. p 855,653 p (6,400,727) 
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to 

Net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 4,ll.14.28 138,272 157,050 
Depreciation on ROUA 4,5,28 60,004 240,012 
Finance costs on lease liability 4,28 652 12,133 
Finance costs on mortgage payable 4.20 1,114,252 1,064,251 
Unrealized loss on financial asset at FVTPL 4,7 (2,868,436) 4,524,230 

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss 4,25 (33,664) (106,022) 

Dividend revenue 4,7 (3,463,347) (3,224,558) 
Interest income 4,6,25 (17,831) {20,563) 

Operating loss before changes in working capital (4,214,445) (3,754,194) 
Decrease (Increase) in: 

Receivables from customers and other brokers. net 4.5,8 192,480 1.363,573 
Other receivables 4,5,9 (4,149) 5,905 
Prepayments and other cun·ent assets 4,5,l I (19,993) (144.401) 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Payable to customers 4,16 4,413,721 3,694,294 
Payable to clearing house 4,17 18,090 (114,100) 
Other payables 4.18 (54,036) (98,808) 
Security deposits 4.28 184,646 
Other current liabilities 4,19 !50,500) 7,861 

Cash provided by operations 465,814 960,130 

Interest received 4,6,25 17,831 20,563 

Dividend received 4.7 3,463,347 3.224,558 

[nterest paid 4,20,28 (1,114,904) (1,076,384) 

Income tax paid 4,27 (12,330) (17,398) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,819,758 3.1 l l ,469 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITfES 

Payment of refundable deposit 4,5,15 (105,149) (1,345) 

Acquisition of intangible assets 4,5.14 (8,150) (75,114~ 

Net cash used in investing activities (113,299) (76.459) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANC1NG ACTIVITfES 

Proceeds from the issuance of shares 4,21 1,000,000 1.000.000 

Paymnet for lease liability 4.28 (65,600) (252,875) 
Payment of mortgage payable 4,20 (2,774,004) (2.770,060) 

Net cash used in financing activities (1,839,604) (2.022,935) 

NET INCREASE IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 866,855 l.012,075 

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 33,664 106,022 

CASH AND CASH EQUIV A LENTS 
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 13,8S4,S62 12,736,465 

CASH AND CASH EQUfV A LENTS 
AT THE END OF THE YEAR p L4,7SS,081 p 13,854,562 

(See accompanying Noles to Financial Statements) 



CU ALO PING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 2024 and 2023 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL CNFORMA TION 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION, (the Company) is a corporation registered with 
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission under registration number 84870 dated March 
9, 1979. The Company shall engage primarily in the bonds and other financial. securities and all 
activities directly and indirectly connected therewith or indicated thereto, and to be a member of 
any stocks or commodity exchange, as well as boards ofrealtors, national, regional or local. 

On March 22, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors approved the amendment of its Articles of 
Incorporation changing its registered principal place of business from 1765 P.M. Guazon Street, 
Paco, Manila, Philippines to L03 U61 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hippodromo St., Brgy. Carmona Makati 
City. This was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 26, 2019. 

Approval of the Financial Statement 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 including its 
comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved and authorized for issue 
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 15, 2025. The Board of Directors is empowered to make 
revisions even after the date of issue. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards as approved by the Philippine Financial and Sustainability 
Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) (formerly Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 
Council). l11is financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards 
(PAS) and Philippines interpretations from International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (lFRIC) and adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including 
SEC pronouncement. 

Preparation and Measurement 

The Company has prepared the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2024 
and 2023 on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of current business activities and the 
realization of assets and settlements of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P) the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for 
financial asset carried at fair value through profit or loss and financial asset at fair value through 
other comprehensive income. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration 
given in exchange for an asset or fair value of consideration received in exchange for incurring 
liability. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 
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• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the 
Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data 
to the extent possible. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is not directly observable, it is 
estimated by the Company (working closely with external qualified valuers) using valuation 
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs (e.g. by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction 
prices for similar items, discounted cash tlow analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect 
the issuer's specific circumstances). Inputs used are consistent with the characteristics of the asset 
or liability that market participants would take into account. 

Further infonnation about assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following: 

• Note 5 - Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 
• Note 32 - Fair Value Measurement 

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based 
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance 
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety; which are described as follows: 

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include 
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized by the Company at the end of 
the reporting period during which the change occurred. 

NOTE 3 - ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING ST AND ARDS 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for 
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. 
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• Amendments to PAS l, Presentation of Financial Statements - Non-current liabilities with 
covenants. 

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before 
The end of the reporting period affect the entity's right to defer settlement of liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the 
classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right 
exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after 
the reporting date ( e.g. a covenant based on the entity's financial position at the reporting date that 
is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date). 

The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the reporting 
period. However, if the entity's right to defer settlement ofliability is subject to the entity complying 
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses information that 
enables users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable 
within twelve months after the reporting period. This would include infonnation about the 
covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is required to comply with 
them), the carrying amount ofrelated liabilities, and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate 
that the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants. 

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
January 2024. Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. If an entity applies the 
amendments for an earlier period, it is also required to apply the 2020 amendments early. 

• Amendments to PAS 7, Statements of Cash Flows and PFRS 7, Financial instruments: 
Disclosures-Supplier Finance Arrangements 

The amendments add a disclosure objective to PAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose 
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enable users of financial statements to 
assess the effects of those arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows. In addition, PFRS 
7 was amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example within the requirements to 
disclose information about an entity's exposure to a concentration of liquidity risk. 

The tenn 'supplier finance arrangements' is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe the 
characteristics of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the information. 
To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its supplier 
finance arrangements: 

a. The terms and conditions of the arrangements 

b. The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the entity's statement of 
financial position, of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements 

c. The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already 
received payment from the finance providers 

d. Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a supplier 
finance arrangement and comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier finance 
arrangement 

e. Liquidity risk information 
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The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting period in 
which an entity applies the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after January 2024. Earlier application is permitted. 

• Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback 

The amendments to PFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback 
transactions that satisfy the requirements in PFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments 
require the seller-lessee to determine 'lease payments' or 'revised lease payments' such that the 
seller- lessee does not recognize a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller­
lessee after the commencement date. 

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognized by the seller-lessee relating to the partial 
or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognized 
a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease liability (for 
example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the general 
requirements in PFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback that includes 
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate. 

As part of the amendments, the IASB amended an Illustrative Example in PFRS 16 and added a 
new example to illustrate the subsequent measurement of a right-of-use asset and lease liability in 
a sale and leaseback transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or 
rate. The illustrative examples also clarify that the liability, that arises from a sale and leaseback 
transaction that qualifies as a sale applying PFRS 15, is a lease liability. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after I January 2024. 
Earlier application is permitted. If a seller-lessee applies the amendments for an earlier period, it is 
required to disclose that fact. 

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8 to sale and 
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the 
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applied PFRS 16 

New and Amended PFRS and PIC Issuances in Issue But Not Yet Effective or Adopted 

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. The Company intends to apply the 
following pronouncement when they become effective. Adoption of these pronouncements is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company' s financial statements. 

Effective beginning on or after January l, 2025 

• PFRS 17. Insurance Contracts 

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition 
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4, 
insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance 
contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities 
that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary 
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply. 
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The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is 
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely 
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive 
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the 
general model, supplemented by: 

• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) 

• A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts 

On December 15, 2021, the FSRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from January 
1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by the 
Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years after its 
effective date as decided by the IASB. 

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with comparative 
figures required. Early application is permitted. Based on management assessment, this is not 
expected to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company. 

• Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeability 

The amendments specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how 
it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025. 
Earlier adoption is permitted, and that fact must be disclosed. When applying the amendments, an 
entity cannot restate comparative information. Based on management assessment, this is not 
expected to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company. 

Effective begin11ing on or after January 1, 2026 

• Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7, Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments 

The amendments clarify that financial liability is derecognized on the 'settlement date', i.e., when 
the related obligation is discharged, cancelled, expires or the liability otherwise qualifies for 
derecognition. They also introduce an accounting policy option to identify financial liabilities that 
are settled through an electronic payment system before settlement date if certain conditions are 
met. 

The amendments also clarify how to assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial 
assets that include environmental, social and governance (ESGHinked features and other similar 
contingent features. 

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the treatment of non-recourse assets and contractually linked 
instruments. Based on management assessment, this is not expected to have any material impact on 
the financial statements of the Company. 

• Annual improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards-Volume 11 

The amendments are limited to changes that either clarify the wording in an Accounting Standard 
or con-ect relatively minor unintended consequences, oversight or conflicts between the 
requirements in the Accounting Standards. The following is the summary of the Standards involved 
and their related amendments. 
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The amendments included in paragraphs 85 and 86 of PFRS 1 cross references to the qualifying 
criteria for hedge accounting in paragraph 6.4.l(a), (b) and (c) of PFRS 9. These are intended to 
address potential confusion arising from an inconsistency between the wording in PFRS 1 and the 
requirements for hedge accounting in PFRS 9. 

• Amendments to PFRS 7, Gain or Loss on Derecognition 

The amendments updated the language of paragraph B38 of PFRS 7 on unobservable inputs and 
included a cross reference to paragraphs 72 and 73 of PFRS 13. 

• Amendments to PFRS 9 

a) Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabilities 

The amendments to paragraph 2.1 of PFRS 9 clarified that when a lessee has detem1ined that a lease 
liability has been extinguished in accordance with PFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply paragraph 
3.3.3 and recognize any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. 

b) Transaction Price 

The amendments to paragraph 5 .1.3 of PFRS 9 replaced the reference to 'transaction price as defined 
by PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' with 'the amount determined by applying 
PFRS 15'. The term 'transaction price' in relation to PFRS 15 was potentially confusing and so it 
has been removed. The te1m was also deleted from Appendix A of PFRS 9. 

• Amendments to PFRS I 0, Determination 4 a 'De Facto Agent 

The amendments to paragraph B74 of PFRS lO clarified that the relationship described in 874 is 
just one example of various relationships that might exist between the investor and other parties 
acting as de facto agents of the investor. 

• Amendments to PAS 7, Cost Method 

The amendments to paragraph 37 of PAS 7 replaced the term 'cost method' with 'at cost', following 
the prior deletion of the definition of'cost method". Based on management assessment, this is not 
expected to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company. 

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2027 

• PFRS 18. Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 

The standard replaces PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and responds to investors' 
demand for better infonnation about companies' financial performance. The new requirements 
include: 

o Required totals, subtotals and new categories in the statement of profit or loss 
o Disclosure of management-defined performance measures 
o Guidance on aggregation and disaggregation 

Based on management assessment, this is not expected to have material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company. 
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The standard allows eligible entities to elect to apply PFRS 19's reduced disclosure requirements 
while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements in other PFRS 
accounting standards. The application of the standard is optional for eligible entities. Based on 
management assessment, this is not expected to have material impact on the financial statements of 
the Company. 

Deferred effectivity 

• Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or 
Contribution of Assets behveen an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture. 

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing wilh the loss of 
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. 

The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint 
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or 
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent 
of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture. 

On January 13, 2016, the Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council deferred the 
original effective date of January I, 2016, of the said amendments until the IASB completes its 
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of 
accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures. 
Based on management assessment, this is not expected to have material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

NOTE 4 - MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements 
are summarized below. These accounting policies information are considered material because of 
its amounts, nature and related amounts. These are material in understanding material information 
in the financial statement. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Date of recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the 
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and 
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting. 

Initial Recog11ition and Measuremmt. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, 
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a 
liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVTPL, 
includes transaction costs. 

"Day I" Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value 
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value ( a "Day 1" difference) in profit or loss. 

In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price 
as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes "Day I" difference in profit or loss when the inputs 
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become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company 
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the "Day l" difference. 

Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following categories: (a) 
financial assets at FVTPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost and ( c) financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are 
classified as either (a) financial liabilities at FVTPL or (b) financial liabilities at amortized cost. 
The classification of a financial instruments largely depends on the Company's business model and 
its contractual cash flow characteristics. 

Fi11a11cial Assets and Liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are either classified as held for trading or designated at 
FVTPL. 

This category includes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to 
classify at FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows 
are not "solely for payment of principal and interest" assessed at initial recognition of the assets. or 
which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash 
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell. 

The Company may, at initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial liability meeting 
the criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset or financial liability 
at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise 
from measuring these assets or liabilities. 

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL and held for trading financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of 
financial assets at FVTPL and held for trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. 

For financial liabilities designated at FVTPL under the fair value option, the amount of change in 
fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other 
comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch. 
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or 
loss. 

As at December 3 T, 2024 and 2023, the Company's financial asset at FVTPL assets or liabilities 
classified as FVTPL are presented in (Note 7). 

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 

Financial assets shall be measured at am01tized cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses, if any. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an 
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integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process. 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's cash and cash equivalents, receivables from 
customers, and other brokers, other receivables and refundable deposits are classified under this 
category (Notes 6, 8, 9 and 15). 

Cash in banks are demand deposits with banks and earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. 
Meanwhile, cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
into known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and 
which have a maturity of three (3) months or less at acquisition. 

Financial As~·ets at FVOCI. 

For debt instruments lhat meet the contractual cash flow characteristic and are not designated at 
FVTPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the 
following conditions are met: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

For equity instruments, the Company may irrevoeably designate the financial asset to be measured 
at FVOCI as long as these are not held for trading purposes. 

After initial recognition, Financial assets at FVOCI are presented in the financial statements at fair 
value with changes in fair value are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). 

Interest income on debt instruments is calculated using the effective interest method while credit 
losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognized directly in profit or loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are 
reclassified to profit or loss. 

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right to 
receive payment is established. Cumulative changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments are 
recognized in equity and are not reelassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company' s financial assets classified as FVOCI m 
presented in Note 10. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost 

Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at amortized cost when the substance of 
the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or 
another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. 

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable 
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amo1tized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized 
or through the amortization process. 
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's payable to customers, payable to clearing 
house, other payables, security deposits, mortgage payable and lease liability are classified under 
this category. (Note 16, 17, 18, 20, and 28) 

Reclassification 

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model 
for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day 
of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date). 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVTPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost 
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of 
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVTPL category to financial assets at 
amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at 
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI shall be recognized in profit or loss. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVTPL category to financial assets at 
FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to 
financial assets at FVTPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment 
at the reclassification date. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company records an allowance for ''expected credit loss" (ECL). ECL is based on the 
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Company expects to receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation 
to the asset's original effective interest rate. 

For receivables from customers, the Company has applied the provision of SRC Rule 52.1.11 and 
Risk Based Capital Adequacy. The Company' s Credit Losses was computed based on the 
classification, credit loss rate and basis specified in SRC Rule No. 52.1.11. In 2023, section 
52.1 .I 1.2 and 52.1.11.3 was amended through SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of 2023. 

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on the 12-month 
ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the 
lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the 
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial 
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information, 
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk 
since initial recognition. 
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A financial asset (or where applicable, a parl of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized when: 

• the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; 

• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed 
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass­
through" arrangement; or 

• the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either 
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial 
asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in 
the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and 
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

Financial Liabilities 

A fmancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derccognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms, 
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is 
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value ofremaining cash flows of the original 
liability. 

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows, 
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and 
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair 
value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. 

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not 
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or 
fees paid or received in the restructuring. 

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets 
and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position. 
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A financial instrument is classi tied as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to: 

• Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; 
• Exchange :financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are 

potentially unfavorable to the Company; or 
• Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 

financial asset for a :fixed number of own equity shares. 

lf the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial 
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability. 

Prepayments and Other Current Assets 

Prepayments represent advance payments for company expenses which the Company expects to 
consume in the subsequent period. Other current assets includes prepaid income tax and VAT input. 
Prepayments and other current assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less 
any portion that has already been consumed or that has already expired. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 
more than one period. 

Items of property and equipment are initially measured at cost. Such cost includes purchase price 
and all incidental costs necessary to bring the asset to its location and condition. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, items of property and equipment are measured in the statement of financial 
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Depreciation, which is computed on a straight-line basis, is recognized so as to allocate the cost of 
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives. 

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in useful life or residual value of an 
asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations. 

When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their costs and related accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain 
or loss is reflected in profit or loss for the period. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets accounts include purchased computer software and trading right. These are 
initially measured at cost less any accumulated amortization impainnent losses. 

Computer software is amortized over its estimated useful life of three years using the straight-line 
method. If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in the useful life or residual 
value of an intangible asset, the amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new 
expectations. 

Trading right is not amortized but is reviewed each year to detetmine whether events and 
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset. The Company 
tests the asset for impairment by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount, and 
recognizing any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount as an impainnent loss. 
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When intangible assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated 
amortization and impainnent losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain 
or loss is reflected in profit or loss for the period. 

Impairment of Non-financial Assets 

At each reporting date, the carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed to 
detennine whether there is any indication that those assets bave suffered an impainnent loss. If 
there is an indication of possible impainnent, the recoverable amount of any affected asset ( or group 
of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If estimated recoverable 
amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an 
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit and loss 

Any impainnent loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
(CGU) exceeds its net recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets of the Company. Impairment 
losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period incurred. 

The net recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to 
sell. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset 
while fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an ann 's length 
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount 
rate that ref1ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. 

lmpainnent losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impainnent loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to detennine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impainnent loss has been 
recognized. 

Other Current Liabilities 

Other current liabilities include due to BIR and statutory payables. These are presented in the 
statement of financial position at undiscounted amounts. 

Mortgage Payable 

Mortgage payable account represents borrowed funds from financial institutions to finance 
acquisition of Condominium Unit. These are recognized initially at the transaction price and is 
subsequently stated in the statements of financial position at amortized cost. 

Mortgage payable is classified as current liability unless the Company has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability beyond 12 months from the reporting date. 

Share Capital 

Share capital represents the total par value of the ordinary shares issued. 

Equity instruments are measure.ct at the fair value of the cash or other consideration received or 
receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. 
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The difference between the consideration received and the par value of the shares issued is credited 
to share premium. 

Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings include income earned in current and prior periods net of any dividend 
declaration, effects of changes in accounting policy and prior period adjustments. 

Appropriated Retained Earnings 

Appropriated retained earnings pertains to the restricted portion which is intended for the resource 
fund in compliance with SRC rule 49.1 (B). Unappropriated retained earnings represent the portion 
which can be declared as dividends lo shareholders. 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Other components of equity comprise of items of income and expense that are not recognized in 
profit or loss for the year. Other comprehensive income pertains to cumulative remeasurement gains 
(losses) on net retirement asset or liability. 

Revenue 

Revenue with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract has been 
satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over time if one of the 
following criteria is met (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the 
Company perfonn its obligations; (b) the Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that 
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (c) the Company's performance does 
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable 
right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in 
time. 

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as 
an agent. The Company has assessed that it acts as agent in its brokerage transactions. The Company 
acts as a principal in its income from other sources. 

Commission 

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when trade deals are confirmed. This is computed on an 
agreed flat rate to every transaction. 

Divide11d Reve1111e 

Dividend revenue is recognized when the Company' s rights to receive payment have been 
established, provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

Trading Gains or losses on Financial Assets at FVTPL 

Trading gains or losses on financial assets Palat FVTPL include all gains and losses from changes 
in fair value and disposal of financial assets at FVTPL. Unrealized gains or losses are recognized 
in profit or loss upon remeasurement of the financial assets at FVTPL at each reporting date. Gains 
or losses from sale of financial assets at FVTPL. are recognized in profit or loss upon confinnation 
of trade deals. 
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Interest income pertains to income on bank deposits. Interest income is recognized in profit and 
loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. 

Other i11come 

Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period. 

Expenses 

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits in the form of decreases in assets or increase in 
liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to equity 
participants. Expenses are generally recognized when the services are received or when the 
expenses are incurred. 

Direct Costs 

Direct costs are expenses incurred that are associated with services rendered which includes salaries 
and employee benefits and other expenses directly associated wilh the cost of service. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses are costs attributable to administrative, marketing, and other business activities 
of the Company that cannot be directly associated to the services rendered. 

Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs include interest and other charges related to borrowing arrangements. 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets are added to the cost of the assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

Income Tax 

Income tax expense includes current tax expense and deferred tax expense. 

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the 
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. 

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits 
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from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) 
and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforwards of 
unused MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Most changes in deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are recognized as a component of tax 
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCI or directly 
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in OCI or directly in equity, respectively. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same tax authority. 

Employee Benefits 

Short-term benefits 

Short-term benefits given by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages, 
compensated absences, 13th month pay, employer share cont1·ibutions and other de minirnis 
benefits, among others. 

These are recognized as expense in the period the employees render services to the Company. 

Retirement Benefits 

The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan. However, the Company provides 
retirement benefits in compliance with RA 7641. No actuarial computation was obtained during the 
year because the amount of provision for retirement benefits will not materially affect the fair 
presentation of the financial statements considering that the Company has only few employees. 

Related Party Transactions and Relationships 

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company 
and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged. Transactions between related parties 
are accounted for at arm's length prices or on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties 
in an economically comparable market. 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. These 
include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control 
or are controlled by, or under common control with the Company; (b) associates; (c) individuals 
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the investee that gives them 
significant influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such individual; 
and (d) the Company's funded retirement plan. 
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In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 
relationship, and not merely the legal form. 

Leases 

A lease is a contract that conveys the right to use an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for a consideration. 

Detennination as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is made at the inception of the lease. 
Aecordingly, the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are: 

• the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract 
or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the 
lessee; 

• the lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope 
of the contract; and, 

• the lessee has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. 
The lessee assesses whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset 
is used throughout the period of use. 

Company as lessee 

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in 
the statement of financial position. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
the lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily 
available or the Company ' s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed), variable lease payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected 
to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options ( either renewal 
or termination) reasonably certain to be exercised. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability 
is increased for interest incurred and reduced for lease payments made. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any initial 
direct costs incurred by the lessee, an e.stimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the 
end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of 
any incentives received). Subsequently, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset on a 
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the end of the lease tenn. The Company 
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the 
practical expedients. Instead ofrecognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in 
relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 

Foreign Currency Transaction 

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognized using the spot rate of exchange at the date of 
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency using the closing rate as of the reporting date. Gains and 
losses arising from foreign currency transactions and remeasurement of monetary assets and 
liabilities are recognized immediately in profit and loss. 
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Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, 
including risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. If the effect of the time 
value of money is material, provisions are detennined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense. Provisions are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the separate financial statements but are 
disclosed in the notes to separate financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the 
separate financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to separate statements of financial 
position when an inflow of economic benefits is probable 

Changes in accounting policies, change in accounting estimates and correction of prior 
period errors 

The Company applies changes in accounting policy if the change is required by the accounting 
standards or in order to provide reliable and more relevant infonnation about the effects of 
transactions, other events or conditions on the Company's financial statements. Changes in 
accounting policy brought about by new accounting standards are accounted for in accordance with 
the specific transitional provision of the standards. All other changes in accounting policy are 
accounted for retrospectively. 

Changes in accounting estimates is recognized prospectively by reflecting it in the profit and loss 
in the period of the change if the change affects that period only or the period of the change and 
future periods if the change affects both. 

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the Company's financial statements 
for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable infonnation that 
was available when financial statements for those periods were authorized for issue and could 
reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and 
presentation of those financial statements. 

To the extent practicable, the Company corrects a material prior period error retrospectively in the 
first financial statements authorized for issue after its discovery by restating the comparative 
amounts for the prior periods( s) presented in which the error occurred, or if the error occurred before 
the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for 
period presented. 

When it is impracticable to detennine the period-specific effects of an error on comparative 
infonnation for one or more prior periods presented, the Company restates the opening balances of 
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable. 

Subsequent events 

Subsequent events that provide additional infomrntion about conditions existing at period end 
(adjusting events) are recognized in the financial statements. Subsequent events that provide 
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additional infonnation about conditions ex1stmg after period end (non-adjusting events) are 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

NOTE 5- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards requires the Company to make estimates and asswnptions 
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The 
judgements and accounting estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based 
upon management evaluation ofrelevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date. While the 
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate. Future events may occur 
which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of changes 
in estimates will be reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably detem1inable. 

The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any 
future period affected. 

Judgment 

In the process ofapplying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apa1i from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

Determination of ECL on financial assets 

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for financial assets. The provision rates are 
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns 
by customer type and credit rating. 

The provision matrix is based on the Company's historically observed default rates. The 
Company' s management intends to regularly calibrate on an annual basis the matrix to consider the 
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. Details about the ECL on the 
Company's trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 30. 

Fair Value Measurement/or Financial Assets at FVTPL 

The Company carries certain financial assets at fair value which requires judgment and extensive 
use of accounting estimates. In cases when active market quotes are not available, fair value is 
detennined by reference to the current market value of another financial instrument which is 
substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flow of the underlying net base 
of the instrument or other more appropriated valuation techniques (Note 7). 

The amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company had utilized different valuation 
methods and assumptions. Any change in fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities 
would affect profit. The fair value of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in an active 
market is detem1ined through valuation techniques using the net present value computation. 

The carrying values of the Group's trading and investment securities and the amounts of fair value 
changes recognized on those financial assets are disclosed in Note 7. 

Assessment of Impairment of Nonjinancial Assets 

The Company determines whether there are indicators of impainnent of the Company's non­
financial assets. Indicators ofimpainnent include significant change in usage, decline in the asset's 
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fair value or underperfomiance relative to expected historical or projected future results. 
Determining the fair value requires the detennination of future cash flows and future economic 
benefits expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. It 
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the :financial 
statements. Future events could be used by management to conclude that these assets are impaired. 
Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial 
position and financial performance. The preparation of the estimated future cash tlows and 
economic benefits involves significant judgments and estimation. 

No impainnent loss on non-financial assets was recognized in the Company's financial statements 
in either 2024 or 2023. 

Estimates 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adj ustrnent to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period: 

Estimatio11 of Allowance for Credit Losses 

The measurement of the allowance for Credit Losses on financial assets at amortized cost and at 
FVOCI is an area that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future economic 
conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). 
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation used in measuring Credit Losses is further 
detailed in Note 30. 

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment 

The Company estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over 
which these assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of these assets 
and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, only if there is a significant change 
in the asset or how it is used. 

The following estimated useful lives are used in depreciating the property and equipment and 
computer equipment under intangibles: 

Particulars 
Condominium Unit 
Leasehold Improvement 
Furniture, Fixtures & Office Equipment 

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets 

Useful Lives 
25 years 
10 years 
5 years 

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and reduces the 
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or prut of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the 
deferred tax assets recognized as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 will be fully utilized in the coming 
years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Note 27. 
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This account consists of: 

Petty cash fund 
Cash in bank 
Cash equivalents 

2024 
P 15,000 

13,975,653 
764,428 

P 14,755,081 
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2023 
p 15,000 

13,107,701 
731,861 

p 13,854,562 

Cash in bank generally earns interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. These are 
unrestricted and available for use in the Company' s operation except for the special reserve bank 
account with Maybank. 

Interest income recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income amounted to Pl 7,831 in 
2024 and P20,563 in 2023. (Note 25) 

The Company's 31-day dollar time deposit investment with interest rate of0.050% amounts to USD 
13,176 in 2024 and USD 13,171 in 2023, translated to Philippine Peso amounting to P764,428 and 
P731,861 at an exchange rate ofP58.014 and P55.567 to a USD in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2-1, the Company maintains a 
special reserve bank account with Maybank amounting to Pl0,509,280 and PS,496,014 as at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively for the exclusive benefit of its customers. The 
Company's revenue requirement is determined based on SEC's prescribed computation. As of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's reserved account are adequate to cover _its required 
requirements. 

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR V ALOE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

This account consists of: 

2024 2023 

Equities in PIDSIX p 9,316,081 p 8,201,446 

Equities outside PHISIX 34,335,489 32,581,688 

p 43,651,570 p 40,783,134 

The movement in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is summarized below: 

2024 2023 
Balance at beginning of year p 40,783,134 p 45,307,364 
Additions 256,000 
Disposals (256,000) 
Fair value adjustments 2,868,436 {4,524,230) 
Balance at end of year p 43,651,570 p 40,783,134 

Financial assets at FVTPL represents equity securities held for trading. Fair values are based on the 
quoted market price at the PSE as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 or on the last trading day of each 
year. 

Dividend income on financial assets at FVTPL presented as separate line item in the statements of 
comprehensive income amounted to Pl,423,347 and Pl,184,558 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
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The Company recognizes gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL presented as part of gain on sale 
financial assets at FVTPL in the statements of comprehensive income amounting to Pnil in 2024 
and P4,860 in 2023. 

The change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss recognized and 
presented as separate line item in the statements of comprehensive income amounted P2,868,436 
gain and P4,524,230 loss in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS, net 

This account consists of: 

Receivable from customers 
Receivable from other brokers 

p 

p 

2024 
783,703 

200 
783,903 p 

2023 
976,183 

200 
976,383 

The security valuation of the debit balances of customers' accounts are presented below: 

2024 2023 

Security Security 
Moner Balance Valuation-Long Moner Balance Valuation-Long 

Fully secured accounts: 
More than 250% p 394,229 1" 43,014,636 p 576,306 p 13,436,511 
Between 200% to 250% 
Between 150% to 200% 745 1,174 756 1,186 
Between 100% to 150% 

394,974 432015,810 577,062 13,437,697 

Partially secured accounts: 
Less than I 00% 2,986,759 586,878 3,072,159 592,779 
Unsecured accounts 154,183 152.161 

32140,942 586,878 3,224,320 592,779 

Less: Allowance for credit 
losses {2,752,213) {2,825,199) 

p 783,703 p 43,602,688 p 976,183 p 14,030,476 

Receivables from customers are due within two (2) business days after the consummation of the 
transactions. 

None of the Company's receivables from customers have been pledged as collateral to any loan. 

Allowance for credit losses on receivables from customers is computed using the formula provided 
by the SRC Rule No. 52.1.ll which forms part of the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) 
Report, Note 30. 

A reconciliation of the allowance for credit losses at the beginning and end of 2024 and 2023 is as 
follows: 

Balance at January 1 
Credit losses 
Recovery of allowance (Note 25) 
Balance, December 31 

p 

p 

2024 
2,825,199 

(72,986) 
2,752,213 

2023 
2,807,263 

17,936 

2,825,199 
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NOTE 9 - OTHER RECEIVABLES 

This account consists of: 

Dividends receivable 
Advances to employees 
Other receivables 

p 

p 

The table shows roll forward analysis of the other receivables: 

Beginning balance p 
Additions 
Payments 

Allowance for credit losses 
p 
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2024 2023 
8,378 3,843 
2,670 3,056 

113,692 113,692 
124,740 120,591 

2024 2023 
208,692 208,692 

208,692 208,692 
(95,000} (95,000) 
113,692 p 113,692 

NOTE 10 - FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

This account represents investment in PSE shares amounting to P33,456,000 and P34,680,000 as at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The fair values of the shares have been determined directly by reference to published prices in active 
market. Market value of the PSE shares amounts to P164 and Pl70 per share as of December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company has 204,000 PSE share in 2024 and 2023. 

Dividend income on cash dividend declaration from the Philippine Stock Exchange amounts to 
P2,040,000 both in 2024 and 2023, which is presented as separate line item in the statements of 
comprehensive income. 

Reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of2024 and 2023, effects of market 
adjustments and related deferred tax liability are as follows: 

Shares 2024 Shares 2023 

Balance at beginning of the year 204,000 p 34,680,000 204,000 p 32,232,000 
Unrealized gain (loss) during 

the year {1,224,000} 2,448,000 
Market value, end of the year 204,000 p 33,456,000 204,000 p 34,680,000 

The fair value changes on these financial assets amounts to Pl,224,000 and P2,448,000 in 2024 and 
2023, respectively, these are taken directly to the equity net of related tax. Deferred tax resulting 
from unrealized gain (loss) on this investment amounted to P306,000 and (P612,000) in 2024 and 
2023, respectively. (Note 27) 
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NOTE 11 - PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

This account consists of: 

VAT input 
Prepaid income tax (Note 27) 
Prepaid insurance 
Prepaid taxes and licenses 
Deposits 

p 

p 

2024 
1,578,084 

522,023 
45,280 
67,687 

156,805 
2,369,879 
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2023 
1,427,643 

509,693 
142,550 
100,865 
156,805 

2,337,556 

VAT input are value added tax imposed on purchases of goods and services. These are deductible 
to the Company's future VAT liability. 

Prepaid income tax pertains to excess tax credits, which could be applied to tax liability of the 
company in the future or succeeding period. 

Prepaid insurance represents the unamortized insurance premium which is applicable in the 
succeeding period. 

Prepaid taxes and licenses pertain to advance payment of permits and licenses for the next reporting 
period. 

Deposits pertain to the advanced payment for the 5,000 CPG Shares. 

NOTE 12 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

The Company's investment property pertains to a fully depreciated parking space located at the 
Tytana Plaza in Binondo. 

Cost 
Beginning of the year 
Additions 
Ending of the year 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Beginning of the year 
Amortization 
Ending of the year 

Carrying amount 
As of December 31 

2024 

p 280,000 

280,000 

280,000 

280,000 

p 

No income was earned on this investment property in 2024 and 2023. 

2023 

280,000 

280,000 

280,000 

280,000 
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NOTE 13 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 

A reconciliation in the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2024 and 2023, of property 
and equipment is shown below: 

2024 

Condominium 
Furniture, 

Leasehold 
(At Cost) 

Fixtures & Office 
Improvements 

Total 
Eguiement 

Cost 
January 1 p 17,797,361 p 1,490,588 p 1,229,043 p 20,516,992 
Additions 
Disposals 
December 31 17,797,361 1 490,588 1,229,043 20,516,992 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

January 1 1,490,588 409,681 1,900,269 
Depreciation 81,936 81 ,936 
Disposals 
December 31 1,490,588 491,617 1,982,205 

Carrying Amount -
December 31, 2023 p 17,797,361 p 819.362 p 18,616,723 

Carrying Amount-
December 31, 2024 p 17,797,361 p p 737,426 p 18,534,787 

2023 

Condominium 
Furniture, 

Leasehold 
(At Cost) 

Fixtures & Office 
Improvements 

Total 
Eguiement 

Cost 
January 1 p 17,797,361 p 1,490,588 p 1,229,043 p 20,516,992 
Additions 
Disposals 
December 31 17,797,361 1,490,588 1,229,043 20,516,992 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

January 1 1,490,588 327,745 1,818,333 
Depreciation 81,936 81,936 
Disposals 
December 31 1,490,588 409,681 1,900,269 

Carrying Amount-
December 31, 2022 p 17,797,361 901,298 p 18,698,659 

Carrying Amount -
December 31, 2023 p 17,797,361 p p 819,362 p 18,616,723 

On March 2, 2018, the Company signed a deed of absolute sale for the acquisition of condominium 
unit. As ofreporting date the title of this condominium unit has not been transferred to the Company. 

The condominium unit purchased at PSE One Bonifacio High Street was used as collateral to the 
mortgage loan. (Note 20) 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the management believes that there is no impairment loss on 
its property and equipment. 
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The amount of depreciation is presented in the statements of comprehensive income under the 
operating expenses (Note 24). 

NOTE 14 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net 

This account consists of trading right and computer software. 

Trading Right 

Trading right represents the Company's privilege in trading securities in the PSE floor. In 
compliance with Section 8, Article III of the Amended By-Laws of the Exchange, the Company's 
trading right (previously the exchange membership seat) is pledged at its full value to the PSE to 
secure the payments of all debts due to the Exchange and to other trading participants of the 
Exchange arising out of or in connection with the present or future contracts relating to securities 
and in compliance with Section 7, Article II of the Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading 
Participants, to secure the payment of all debts and claims due to the clients of the Company, the 
Government, the Exchange and the other trading participants of the Exchange and to the Securities 
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines. 

In 2001, the demutualization or conversion of PSE into a stock corporation was approved by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) effective August 8, 2001. Each membership seat will 
be exchanged for shares of stock of PSE. In accordance with the conversion, PSE will issue 
9.2million shares with a par value of Pl per share out of the members' contribution of 
P286.6million. Thus, each of the 184 members/brokers will subscribe to a total of 50,000 shares of 
stocks with a par value of Pl per share. The balance of members' contribution of P277.4million 
will be treated as additional paid-in surplus in the financial statements of PSE. 

In addition to the shares, each member will receive a Certificate of Trading Right to maintain their 
continued access to the trading floor of PSE. The Right can be assigned and transferred by the 
members. 

PSE, however, will not issue shares of stocks for the value of its donated assets. The donated assets 
consisting of two (2) pieces of real property located in Makati and Pasig City, where its trading 
floors are located, are subject to restrictions on their transferability. 

The effects of the conversion plan specifically on the separate valuation of the ownership of the 
exchange seat and the trading rights have been recognized in the Company's financial statements. 
The last transacted price for the sale of trading right in the PSE was Eight Million Pesos 
(P8,000,000) as approved by the PSE Board of Directors on November 16, 2022. Hence, no 
impairment loss is recognized in 2024 and 2023. Trading right balance as of December 31, 2024 
and 2023 amounts to P352,000. 

Computer Software 

Computer software pertains to the Company's accounting system software. 

The gross carrying amounts net of accumulated amortization are presented as part of intangible 
assets in the Statements of Financial Position. Yearly amortization is presented under Operating 
Expenses of the Statements of Comprehensive Income. 
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2024 and 2023, of computer 
software is shown below: 

Cost 
Beginning of the year 
Additions 
Ending of the year 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Beginning of the year 
Amortization 
Ending of the year 

Carrying amount 
As of December 31 

NOTE 15 - REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS 

This account consists of: 

Clearing and trade guaranty fund 
Rental deposit (Note 28) 

p 

p 

p 

p 

2024 

924,520 
8,150 

932,670 

874,297 
56,336 

930,633 

2,037 

2024 
160,749 
130,295 
291,044 

p 

2023 

849,406 
75,114 

924,520 

799,I 83 
75,114 

874,297 

50,223 

2023 
159,655 
26,240 

185,895 

Clearing and Trade Guaranty Fund (CTGF) pertains to fund established, maintained by Securities 
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines (SCCP), for the purpose of covering failed trades due to 
member's illiquidity and/or insolvency. This is refundable upon cessation of the Company's 
business and/or termination of the Company's membership with SCCP. 

Rental deposit pertains to the security deposit paid to Makati Cornerstone Leasing Corp. (lessor) 
for the lease of its office space. This is refundable upon termination or end of the lease agreement. 

NOTE 16 - PAY ABLES TO CUSTOMERS 

This account consists of: 

2024 2023 
Payables to customers p 18,722,548 P 14,284,842 
Payable to customers - tender offer 23,985 

p 18,722,548 P 14,308,827 

The security values of the credit balance of customers' account follows: 

2024 2023 
Security Security 

Credit Valuation- Credit Valuation-
Balance Long Balance Long 

With money balance p 18,722,548 p 712,196,659 p 14,284,842 p 563,913,438 
Without money 
balance 4,842,995,513 5,445,834,700 

p 18,7221548 p 5,555,192,172 p 14.284,842 p 6.009,748,139 

Payables to customers are non-interest bearing and are due within two (2) trading days after the 
consummation of the transactions. 
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Payable to customers - tender offer pertains to the seventy-five percent (75%) of the tender offer 
price received for Holcim shares. The amount was not yet released to the security holders who 
participated in the tender offer awaiting receipt of the balance, twenty-five percent (25%) held in 
escrow by the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall release the balances within five (5) days from 
delivery to the Bidder of the original and valid CAR from the relevant Revenue District Office of 
the Bureau oflnternal Revenue authorizing the transfer of the Tendered Shares from the Tendering 
Shareholder to the Bidder. 

NOTE 17 - PAYABLES TO CLEARING HOUSE 

The net balance of this account as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 relates to the trading transactions 
for the last two trading days in 2024 and last three trading days in 2023, which have not yet been 
cleared. The outstanding balances were net payable to clearing house amounting to Pl47,990 in 
2024 and Pl29,900 in 2023. 

NOTE 18 - OTHER PAYABLES 

This account consists of: 

Accrued expenses 
Central depositary fees payable 
Others 

p 

p 

2024 
341,174 

20,040 
57,327 

418,541 r 

Accrued expenses are Company's incurred expenses but not paid as ofreporting period. 

NOTE 19 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

This account consists of: 

Statutory payable 
Due to BIR 

p 

p 

2024 
23,128 

1,982 
25,110 

p 

p 

2023 
405,604 

19,815 
47,158 

472,577 

2023 
8,597 

67,013 
75,610 

Due to BIR consists of obligations to Bureau of Internal Revenue such as final taxes, stock 
transaction taxes, withholding taxes and value added tax. 

Statutory payable consists of statutory obligations to government agencies such as Social Security 
System, Philippine Health Insurance Corporation and Home Development Mutual Fund. 

NOTE 20 - MORTGAGE PAYABLE 

On March 17, 2017, the Company secured a loan from a local commercial bank amounting to 
Pl6,000,000 using its office at PSE Bonifacio High Street, Fort Bonifacio Global City as collateral 
(Note 13). 

Repayment terms provide a loan term of 10 years, interest servicing for the first 19 quarters, 
thereafter payment in 21 equal installments of principal and interest and remaining balance until 
expiry of the loan. The bank granted the Company 5 years grace period before initial payment of 
monthly amortization. Initial payment commenced on March 31, 2022. Interest on the loan is fixed 
at 5.953 I% for the first 5 years. Thereafter, effective interest rate will be based either on T-bill 
reference policy 4% or 1 year post R-plus 3% or prevailing market rate at the 638 time of the expiry 
whichever is higher. Additional terms provide for a mortgage on the above- mentioned property 
including any and all improvements including fruits and rents in favor of the Lender. 
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The amount of interest expense paid amounts to Pl,114,252 and Pl,064,251 for the year 2024 and 
2023, respectively. 

Details of the outstanding balance of the company's mortgage follows: 

Current 
Non-current 

2024 
P 3,017,803 

4,757,284 

P 7,775,087 

Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances follows: 

Beginning balance 
Proceeds 
Payments 
Ending balance 

NOTE 21 - EQUITY 

Share Capital 

2024 
P 10,549,091 

(2,774,004) 
P 7,775,087 

2023 
P 2,770,060 

7,779,031 

P 10,549,091 

2023 
P 13,319,151 

(2,770,060) 
P 10,549,091 

The Company is authorized to issue One Million (1,000,000) ordinary shares with par value of one 
hundred peso (Pl00) per share. 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company' s total subscribed and issued and outstanding 
capital stock is owned by twelve (12) shareholders. Seven (7) shareholders owned more than 100 
shares. 

A reconciliation of the outstanding share capital at the beginning and end of2024 and 2023 is shown 
below: 

2024 
Shares Amount 

Outstanding 12/31/2023 562,500 p 56,250,000 
Issuance 10,000 1,000,000 
Reacquisition 
Outstanding 12/31/2024 572,500 p 57,250,000 

2023 
Shares Amount 

Outstanding 12/31/2022 552,500 p 55,250,000 
Issuance 10,000 1,000,000 
Reacquisition 
Outstanding 12/31/2023 562,500 p 56,250,000 

Minimum Capital Requirement 

In a meeting held on October 21, 2010, the SEC issued Resolution No. 489 and 492 granting the 
deferment of the P30,000,000 unimpaired paid-in capital requirement of Trading Participants 
effective January I, 2011 until November 30, 2011 provided that Trading Participants with 
Unimpaired Paid-up Capital falling below P30,000,000 shall post a surety bond amounting to 
P30,000,000 on top of the surety bond of Pl2,000,000 in compliance with SRC Rule 28.1 for the 
same period until securities held and controlled by the Trading Participant shall be recorded under 
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the name of the individual clients in the books of the Transfer Agent or in the sub-account with the 
Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation at the option of the client. Compliance with the 
requirement is a condition for the renewal of the Broker Dealer license for the period covering 
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2013. 

In compliance with Section 2 of D, Article VII of the amended Market Regulation Rules, which 
was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2009, effective 
November 1, 2009, the surety bond, shall be Ten Million Pesos (Pl0,000,000) for Brokers and Two 
Million Pesos (P2,000,000) for Dealers. 

On November 21, 2023, the Company renewed its surety bond coverage for the period January 1, 
2024 to December 31, 2024 and on November 16, 2023, the Company renewed its surety bond 
coverage for the period January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 in the amount of Twelve Million 
Pesos (P12,000,000) in compliance with SRC Rule 28.1. 

Based on SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 dated November 11, 2004, starting December 1, 2005, 
every broker dealer is expected to comply with all the requirements of the Risk-Based Capital 
Adequacy (RBCA) rules. As of December 31, 2005, the RCBA report is prepared based on the 
guidelines which cover the following risks: (a) position of market risks, (b) credit risks such as 
counterparty, settlement, large exposure, and margin financing risks, and (c) operation risk. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of RBCA Ratio and Net Liquid Capital (NLC). RBCA 
requirement is the minimum level of capital that has to be maintained by firms which are licensed, 
or securing a broker dealer license, taking into consideration the firma size, complexity and business 
risk. RBC ratio is the quotient of the NLC and the sum of the requirements for operation risk, credit 
risk, and position or market risk. 

' 
NLC, on the other hand, represents the equity eligible for NLC adjusted for non-allowable current 
and non-current assets as described under the Circular. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Under the guidelines set-out by the SEC, all registered brokers dealers should maintain the 
following RBCA and NLC requirements: 

A. RBCA ratio of greater than or equal to 1.1; 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's RBCA ratio of 1.69 and 0.21, 
respectively, is in compliance with the minimum capital requirement set out by the RBCA 
framework in 2022, however in 2023, the Company falls below the ratio requirement. This 
is due to the new computation implemented last August 2023 wherein the FVOCI was 
deducted at market price as ineligible asset and the cumulative gain of the same FVOCl 
was also deducted from the equity in the computation of Net Liquid Capital. 

B. NLC should be at least P5,000,000 or 5% of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is higher; 

C. A dealer who deals only with proprietary shares and does not keep shares in its custody 
shall maintain a NLC of P2,500,000 or 2.5% of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is 
higher; 

D. No broker dealer shall permit its aggregate indebtedness to exceed 2,000% of its NLC. 

The Company's NLC amount to ?32,461,436 and P3,751,868 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, which is more than 5% of the Company's aggregate indebtedness. As of December 
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31, 2024 and 2023, the Company is in compliant with items A to D as prescribed by Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC). 

On May 28, 2009, the SEC approved PSE's Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading 
Participants which provides among other the following provisions: 

a. Trading participants should have a minimum unimpaired paid-up capital ( defined as the trading 
participant's total paid up capital less any deficiency in the retained earnings account) of 
P20,000,000 effective December 31, 2009, provided further that effective December 31, 2010 
and onwards, the minimum unimpaired paid up capital shall be P30,000,000; and 

b. Each trading participant shall pledge its trading right to the extent of its full value to secure the 
payment of all debts and claims due to the trading participant, the government, PSE and to other 
trading participants of the PSE and to the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines. 

On August 8, 2023, the SEC approved amendments to the 2015 Implementing Rules and 
Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code (the "2015 SRC Rules") and SEC Memorandum 
Circular (MC) No. 16, series of 2004, relative to the settlement cycle from T+3 to T+2. 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company is in compliance with PSE' s Rules Governing 
Trading Rights and Trading Participants. 

Retained Earnings 

In compliance with SRC Rule 49. l (B) Reserve Fund, every broker dealer shall annually appropriate 
a certain minimum percentage of its audited profit after tax and transfers the same to the 
appropriated retained earnings. Appropriation shall be 30%, 20%, 10% of profit after tax for broker 
dealers with unimpaired paid up capital of P 1 OM to P 30M, P 30M to P 50M and above P50M, 
respectively. 

In compliance with the above circular, the Company appropriated retained earnings amounting to 
Pl50,561 and Pnil in 2024 and 2023, respectively. Total appropriated retained earnings as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, in compliance with the above circular amounted to N,162,836 and 
P4,012,275, respectively. The company is in compliance with the SRC Rule 49.l(B). 

Revaluation increment 

Reconciliation of the revaluation increment account is as follows: 

2024 2023 

Balance at the beginning of year p 30,300,400 p 28,464,400 

Fair value gain (loss) on PSE share (1,224,000) 2,448,000 
Tax effect 306,000 (612,000) 
Other comprehensive income after tax (918,000} 1,836,000 

Balance at the end of year p 29,382,400 30,300,400 

NOTE 22 - COMMISSION INCOME 

The Company earns commission income from stocks transactions, tender offer and initial public 
offering, these amounts to P243,267 in 2024 and P345,208 in 2023. 
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Breakdown of commission revenue recognized at point in time follows: 

2024 2023 

Commission on stocks transaction p 191,842 p 222,265 
Commission on IPO 51,425 122,943 

p 243,267 p 345,208 

NOTE 23 - DIRECT COSTS 

Details of the Company's direct costs are as follows: 

2024 2023 
Stock exchange dues and fees p 919,311 873,456 
Salaries and employee benefits 349,004 390,828 
13th month and bonuses 29,630 31,957 
SSS, PHIC, HDMF contribution 18,478 1,200 
Employee welfare 20,541 

p 1,316,423 p 1,317,982 

NOTE 24 - OPERATING EXPENSES 

Details of the Company's operating expense are as follows: 

2024 2023 
Salaries and employee benefits p 1,344,049 1,401,937 
Condominium dues 387,757 284,882 
Utilities expense 322,407 240,078 
Rent expense (Note 28) 206,084 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 13,14 and 28) 198,276 397,062 
Professional fee 197,000 197,000 
Transportation and travel 171,899 158,487 
Office supplies 156,928 59,005 
Taxes and licenses (Note 34) 114,103 76,086 
Postage, telephone and communication 106,566 99,235 
Insurance 79,707 53,380 
Fines and penalties 21,229 14,006 
Training and seminars 11,071 804 
Repairs and maintenance 8,571 18,705 
Meetings and conferences 8,000 8,000 
Subscription and periodicals 3,550 3,225 
Bank charges 2,914 1,583 
Miscellaneous 165,595 171,594 

p 3,505,706 p 3,185,069 
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Details of the Company's other income are as follows: 

Rent revenue (Note 28) 
Recovery of credit loss (Note 8) 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 
Interest income (Note 6) 
Others 

p 

p 

2024 
92,323 
72,986 
33,664 
17,831 

832 
217,636 p 
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2023 

106,022 
20,563 

1,727 
128,312 

NOTE 26 - DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION, AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Depreciation and employee benefits were presented as follows: 

2024 
Operating 

Direct Costs Expenses Total 
Employee benefits* P 397,112 P 1,344,049 P 1,741,16 
Depreciation and amortization ======= 198,276 198,276 

*Employee benefits includes salaries and employee benefits, 13th month pay and bonuses and SSS, 
PHIC, HDMF contribution, employee welfare 

2023 
Operating 

Direct Costs Expenses Total 
Employee benefits* P 444,526 P 1,401,937 P 1,846,463 
Depreciation and amortization ~~~==== 397,062 397,062 

* Employee benefits includes salaries and employee benefits, 13th month pay and bonuses and SSS, 
PHIC, HDMF contribution, employee welfare 

NOTE 27- INCOME TAXES 

Income tax benefit for the years ended December 31 consists of: 

Current 
Deferred 

p 

p 

Reconciliation between statutory tax and effective tax follows: 

Income tax at statutory rate 
Tax effect of income subject to final tax 
Tax effect of dividend income exempt 
Tax effect of non-deductible interest expense 
Tax effect of non-deductible fines and penalties 
Tax effect of expired MCIT 
Adjustment of taxes of prior period 
Income tax at effective rate 

p 

p 

2024 

(649,960) 
(649,960) 

2024 
213,912 
(4,458) 

(865,837) 
1,114 
5,307 

(649,960) 

2023 
p 

(2,344,352) 
P (2,344,352) 

2023 
P (1,600,181) 

(5,141) 
(806,140) 

1,285 
3,502 

61,991 
332 

P (2,344,352) 



Cua/oping Securities Corporation Page34 o/49 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Analysis of income tax payable (prepaid income tax) follows: 

2024 2023 
Regular Corporate Income Tax: 
Income (loss) before tax p 855,653 p (6,400,727) 
Permanent differences: 

Interest income subjected to final tax (17,831) (20,563) 
Non-taxable dividend income (3,463,347) (3,224,558) 
Non-deductible interest expense 4,458 5,141 
Non-deductible fines and penalties 21,229 14,006 

Temporary differences: 
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 60,004 240,012 
Finance cost related to lease liability 652 12,133 
Actual rent expense for the year (66,252) (270,308) 
Loss on lease concession 5,300 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (33,664) (106,022) 
Unrealized market (gain) loss (2,868,436) 4,524,230 
Credit losses 17,935 
Recovery from credit losses (72,986) 

Taxable loss (5,580,520) (5,203,421) 
Tax rate 25% 25%) 

p (1,395,130) p (1,300,855) 

Minimum Corporate Income Tax: 
Taxable gross income p (1,072,324) (966,187) 
Tax rate 2% 1.5% 

(21,446) (14,493) 

Tax due (Higher of RCIT or MCIT) p 
Prior year's excess credit (509,693) (492,295) 
Creditable withholding tax (12,330} (17,398) 

Prepaid income tax (Note 11) p (522,023) p (509,693) 

Details ofDTA and DTL follows: 

2024 2023 
DTA: 

DTA arising from MCIT p 4,901 I" 4,901 
DTA arising from NOLCO 5,466,637 4,071,507 

DT A arising from allowance for credit losses 711,802 730,048 
DT A arising from unrealized loss on FVOCI 6,793,200 6,487,200 
DT A arising from lease liability 1,399 

DTL: 
DTL arising from fair value changes on FVPL (7,185,253) (6,468,145) 
DTL arising from unrealized gain on FVOCI (14,616) (14,616) 

DTL arising from unrealized forex (53,410) {44,994) 
p 5,723,261 p 4,767,301 
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The net deferred tax liabilities pertain to the following as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the 
related deferred tax income (expense) for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023: 

Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Statemens of Financial Position Profit or Loss Other Comprehensive Income 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 

Deferred tax - M CIT p 4,901 p 4,901 p j> (61,991) p p 

Deferred tax- NOLCO 5,466,637 4,071,507 1,395,130 1,300,855 

Allowance for credit losses-
683,302 701,548 (18,246) 4,484 

Customer 

Allowance for credit losses-
28,500 28,500 

Other receivables 

Lease liability 1,399 (1,399) (3,548) 

Unrealized (~n) loss on 
(7,185,253) (6,468, 144) (717,109) 1,131,058 

FVPL 
Unrealized gain (loss) on 

6,778,584 6,472,584 306,000 (612,000) 
FVOCI 
Unrealized (gain) loss on 

(53,410) (44,994) (8,416) (26,506) 
Forex 

Net deferred tax assets p 5,723,261 p 4,767,301 

Deferred tax income p 649,960 p 2,344,352 p 306,000 p (612,000) 
(eJijlense) 

Deferred tax asset from NOLCO, arises from the taxable loss that can be charged against income 
of the next three taxable years except for NOLCO incurred for the year 2020 and 2021. Pursuant to 
Section 4 (bbbb) ofBayanihan II and as implemented under RR No. 25-2020, the net operating loss 
of a business or enterprise incurred for the taxable years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over as 
deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years following the year of 
such loss. 

Details of NOLCO that can be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next five (5) 
consecutive taxable years in reference to RR 25-2020 follows: 

Year 
Amount Applied Expired Balance Date of Expiration 

Incurred 
2020 P 4,242,766 p p p 4,242,766 December 31, 2025 

2021 2,589,409 2,589,409 December 31, 2026 

P 6,832,175 p p , 6,832,175 

Details of NOLCO that can be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next three (3) 
consecutive taxable years follows: 

Year 
Amount Applied Expired Balance Date of Expiration 

Incurred 
2024 P 5,580,520 p " f' 5,580,520 December 31, 2027 
2023 5,203,421 5,203,421 December 31, 2026 
2022 4,250,433 4,250,433 December 31, 2025 

Pl 5,034,374 p p PIS,034,374 

Deferred tax asset from MCIT, is the carry forward benefit of the excess of minimwn corporate 
income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). Excess MCIT can be used within 
three taxable years from the date of payment. The Minimwn Corporate Income Tax (MClT) was 
reduced to one percent (1 %) effective July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023 pursuant to Revenue 
Regulation 5-2021.On July 1, 2023, Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) was reverted back 
to two percent (2% )-
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Details ofDTA relating MCIT follows: 

2024 

Year 
Incurred 

2022 

2023 

Year 
Incurred 

2021 
2022 

Amount 

P 4,901 
P 4,901 

Amount 

P 61 ,991 
4,901 

P 66,892 

NOTE 28 - LEASES 

Company as a lessee 

Applied 

p 
p 

Applied 

p 

p 

Expired 

p 
p 

Expired 

P 61,991 

P 61,991 

Balance 

P 4,901 
P 4,901 

Balance 

p 
4,901 

P 4 901 
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Date of Expiration 

December 31, 2025 

Date of Expiration 

December 31, 2023 
December 31, 2025 

The Company entered into lease agreement with Makati Cornerstone Leasing Corp. for the lease of 
its office in Makati City. Lease payments are made every 1st of the month. The agreement also 
provides rental deposit amounting to Pl30,295 and P26,240 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 

The Company's incremental borrowing rate used in the computation of lease liability is 5.95%. 

Right of use asset 

An analysis of the movement in this account follows: 

Beginning balance 
Addition 
Depreciation expense 
Ending balance 

Lease liability 

p 

p 

An analysis of the movement in this account follows: 

Beginning balance 
Addition 
Payment 

Ending balance 

p 

p 

2024 
60,004 

60,004 

2024 
65,600 

65,600 

p 

p 

p 

2023 
300,016 

240,012 
60,004 

2023 

318,475 

252,875 

65,600 
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A maturity analysis of lease liability at December 31, 2024 follows: 

2024 
Within 1 year 1 to 2 Years 2 to 3 Years 

Lease payments p 66,252) p p 
Interest expenses {6522 
Net present values p 65,6002 p p 

Additional Profit or Loss and Cash Flow Information 
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Total 

p 66,252) 
(6522 

p 65,600) 

The total cash outflow in respect to this lease amounts to P66,252 and P265,008 in 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. Interest expense in relation to lease liabilities amounted to P652 in 2024 and Pl 2,133 
in 2023 and are presented as part of Finance Costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Lease Payments Not Recognized o,s Liabilities 

The Company has elected not to recognize a lease liability for short-term leases or for leases of 
low value assets. Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. In 
addition, certain variable lease payments are not permitted to be recognized as lease liabilities and 
are expensed as incurred. 

The expenses relating short-term leases amounted to P206,084 and Pnil in 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. These are presented as rent expense in the statements of comprehensive income (Note 
24). 

Company as a lessor 

The Company entered into a lease agreement with Philippine Racing Club, Inc. as lessor. The term 
of the lease is five years commencing on September 1, 2024 to August 31, 2029, renewable upon 
agreement of both parties. 

Security deposits are required for tenant for the faithful performance of the provisions of the lease 
agreements and this cover possible damages to the leased premises. These are refundable at the end 
of the service agreement. This amounts to P184,646 and Pnil in 2024 and 2023 and is presented 
under non- current liabilities in the statements of financial position. 

Rent income pertaining to these leased properties amounted to P92,323 and Pnil in 2024 and 2023 
and is presented under Other Income in the statements of comprehensive income (Note 25). 

NOTE 29 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company, in the nonnal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Presented 
below are the specific relationship, amount of transaction, account balances, terms and conditions 
and the nature of the consideration to be provided in settlement. 

2024 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Shareholders 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Amount 
(current 

transaction) 
Outstanding 

balance 

and related Buying P 7,890,962 4,574 
interest Selling 6,883,928 1,590,445 
(1) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, no schedule repayments terms 

Terms Conditions 

(2) (4) 
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(2) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, payable in two (2) days after transaction date (I+ 2) 
(3) Unsecured 
(4) Secured by equity securities 

2023 

Nature of 
Relationship 
Shareholders 
and related 

interest 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Buying 
Selling 

Amount 
(current Outstanding 

transaction) balance 

P 7,890,909 p 364,626 
11,935,138 2,086,567 

(1) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, no schedule repayments terms 

Terms 

(2} 

(2) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, payable in three (3) days after transaction date ( T + 3) 
(3) Unsecured 
(4) Secured by equity securities 

Buying and Selling Transaction 
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Conditions 

{4) 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company acts as broker to certain directors and officers. 
Under the Company's policy, these transactions are made substantially on the same terms as with 
other businesses of comparable risks. In 2024 and 2023, the Company's outstanding receivable and 
outstanding payable is presented as part of Receivables from customers (Payable to customers), 
respectively, in the statements of financial position. 

Key Management Compensation 

The compensation paid by the Company to key management personnel as at December 31, 2024 
and 2023 consist of the following: 

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

p 

p 

2024 

397,112 

397,112 p 

NOTE 30 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

2023 

444,526 

444,526 

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and 
investing activities. The Company's risk management is coordinated with the Board of Directors, 
and focuses on actively securing the Company's short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing 
the exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting 
returns. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by 
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company's business activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 
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The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below: 

Market Risk 

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to 
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and certain other price risk which result from both its 
operating, investing and financing activities. 

A. Foreign Currency 

All transactions of the Company are denominated in Philippine peso, its functional currency. The 
Company's exposure relates primarily to its dollar denominated bank deposit amounting to 
P764,428 and P731,861 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company's exposure 
of foreign currency risk is not significant. 

B. Price Risk 

The Company's market price risk arises from its investments carried at fair value (i.e., financial 
assets classified as financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI). The Company manages exposures to 
price risk by monitoring the changes in the market price of the investments and at some extent, 
diversifying the investment portfolio in accordance with the limit set by management. 

For listed equity securities, an average volatility of 15% and 14% has been observed during 2024 
and 2023, respectively. The table below summarizes the sensitivity of the Company profit before 
tax to the observed volatility rates of the fair values. 

Observed Volatility Rates 

Profit before tax 
Equity 

2024 
+15.00% 

430,265 P 
764,428 

-15.00% 

(430,265) P 
(764,428) 

2023 
+14.00% 

632,712 f' 
731,574 

-14.00% 

(632,712) 
(731,574) 

The assumed price volatilities used in the sensitivity analysis represent the defined shift used by the 
Company to manage price risk based on the historical performance of equity securities. 

C. Interest Rate Risk 

The Company's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. 
Longer-term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through its cash and bank borrowings, 
which are subject to variable interest rates (Notes 6 and 20). All other financial assets and liabilities 
have fixed rates. 

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the Company's profit before tax and equity to a 
reasonably possible change in interest rates of+/- 1.00% for Philippine peso in 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of 
current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average market interest 
rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period that are 
sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant. 

Profit before tax 
Equity 

p 

2024 
+1.00% 

(194,176) 
(145,632) 

-1.00% 

194,176 P 
145,632 

2023 
+1.00% 

(146,269) 
(109,702) 

-1.00% 

146,269 
109,702 



Cualoping Securities Corporation 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Credit Risk 
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Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Company. The 
Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from selling services to 
customers including related parties and placing deposits with banks. 

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified 
either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. The 
Company' s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant 
proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk. Accordingly, the 
Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant. 

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash 
and cash equivalents and refundable deposits, the Company' s exposure to credit risk arises from 
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these 
instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with 
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the BOD. The Company's exposure on rental 
deposit is minimal since no default in payments were made by the counterparties. 

The Company's receivable from customers related to unsecured and partially secured account is 
actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. A substantial portion of the 
Company's receivable from customers is secured by shares of stocks listed and traded in the PSE 
and lodged with Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation (PDTC) under the account of the 
Company. 

The table below is an analysis of receivables from customers is as follows: 

2024 

Collateral 
Counterparty 

Allowance for Net 
Balance (net of haircut) exposure credit losses 

{after collateral} 
exposure 

TtoT+l of 
counterpa.rty p 142,131 p 15,061,529 p (14,919,398) p p 
T+2 to T+12 of 
counterparty 15,488 12,283,332 (12,267,843) 310 
T+l3to T+30 
of counterparty 
Beyond T+30 of 
counterparty 3,378,297 2,061,780 1,316,517 2,751,903 

p 3,535,916 p 29,406,641 p {25,870,725} p 2,752,213 p 

2023 

Collateral 
Counterparty 

Allowance for Net 
Balance 

(net of haircut) 
exposure credit losses 

{after collateral} 
exposure 

Tto T+l of 
counterparty p 127,722 p 3,435,855 p (3,308,133) p p 
T+2 to T+l2 of 
counterparty 
T+ l3 to T+30 of 
counterparty 
Beyond T+30 of 
counterparty 3,673,659 6,357,270 {2,683,6102 2,825,199 

p 3,801,381 p 9,793,125 p {5,991,7432 p 2,825,199 p 

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified 
either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. The 
Company trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company' s policy 
that all customers are subject to credit verification procedures. 
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In respect of receivable from customers and clearing house and other receivables, the Company is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of 
counterparties having similar characteristics. 

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statements 
of financial position. The maximum exposure is shown at gross amount, without taking into account 
collateral and other credit enhancement. 

31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23 
Cash and cash equivalents p 14,740,081 13,839,562 
Receivable from customers 3,535,916 3,801,582 
Other receivables 124,740 120,591 
Refundable deposits 291,044 185,895 

p 18,691,781 p 17,947,630 
Cash excludes petty cashfimd and cash on hand amounting to Pl5,000 in 2024 and 2023 

None of the Company's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, 
except for cash as described below. 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are 
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the cash and cash equivalents 
are cash in banks and time deposits which are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to a maximum coverage of Pl,000,000 for every depositor per banking institution. 

(b) Receivablesfrom Customers 

The Company trades only with recognized and credit worthy third parties. In accordance with 
RBCA requirements, limits are imposed to avoid large exposures to a single client or counterparty, 
single debt issue and single equity issue relative to a particular issuer company and its group of 
companies. As a result, maximum credit risk, without taking into account the fair value of any 
collateral and netting agreements, is limited to the amounts in the statements of financial position. 

A substantial portion of the Company's Receivable from Customers is secured by shares of stocks 
(Note 8). 

The Company applies the provision of SRC Rules 52.1.11 and Risk Based Capital Adequacy in 
measuring Credit Losses. In 2023 Section 52.1.11.2 and 52.1.11.3 was amended through SEC 
Memorandum Circular No. 11 Series of 2023. 

To measure the credit losses, receivables were classified based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 
52.1.11.2 as follows: 

Classification 

T+0 to T+l 
T+2 to T+l2 
T+13 to T+30 

T+31 up 
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The credit loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 52.1.11.3 as follows: 

Classification Provision Base 

T+0 to T+0 to T+l 0 Total Receivables (TR) 
T+2 to T+2 to T+12 2% TR 
T+13 to T+13 to T+30 50% TR less collateral (net of haircut) 
T+31 up 100% TR less collateral (net of haircut) 

The credit loss were computed by getting, for each doubtful account an amount equivalent to the 
provision of the amount outstanding net of collateral (net of haircut). Basis for the computation 
would be the individual accounts. 

( c) Other receivables and refundable deposits 

The credit risk for other receivables and refundable deposits are considered negligible and therefore 
the loss allowance is to be determined using the general approach. The amount of ECL is not 
significant due to the fact that the collectability of contractual cash flows expected from these 
financial instruments is reasonably assured except for the P95,000 of which allowance for credit 
losses has already been set-up. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising 
from the Company's inability to meet its obligation when they come due without recurring 
unacceptable losses or coats. 

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring cash inflows and cash outflows 
due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day 
and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity 
needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly. 

The Company maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods. Excess 
cash are normally invested in short-term placements. Funding for long-term liquidity needs could 
be sourced through available credit facilities. 

Company's payable to customers are normally settled within two (2) days. Other payables are 
normally settled within one ( 1) year after reporting date. 

The following table presents the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

December 31, 2024 

Within 3 3 months to 6 months to 
months 6 months 1 :year 3 to 5 :years Total 

Payable to 
customers P 18,722,548 p p p p 18,722,548 
Mortgage 
payable 725,493 743,414 1,548,896 4,757,284 7,775,087 
Other payables 418,541 418,541 
Security 
deposits 184,646 184,646 

P 19,866,582 p 743,414 p 1,548,896 p 4,941,930 p 27,100,822 
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Within3 
months 

Payable to 
customers p 14,308,827 
Mortgage 
payable 688,486 
Lease liability 65,600 
Other payables 472,577 

p 15,535,490 

3 months to 
6 months 

p 

675,197 

P 675,197 

NOTE 31 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

December 31, 2023 
6 months to 

1 year 

1,406,377 

P 1,406,377 

3 to 5 years 

7,779,031 

P 7,779,031 
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Total 

p 14,308,827 

10,549,091 

65,600 

472,577 
p 25,396,095 

The Company's objective in managing capital is to ensure that a stable capital base is maintained 
in accordance with industry regulations while maintaining investor, creditor, and market confidence 
to sustain the future development of the business. 

The Company's BOD has the overall responsibility for monitoring capital proportion to risks. The 
Associated Person designated by the Company monitors compliance with minimum capital 
requirements imposed by PSE and SEC. 

The Company, being a broker/dealer in securities, is regulated by PSE and SEC and subject to the 
following capital requirement in accordance with the Securities Regulatory Commission (SRC). 

Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirement 

Based on SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, the Company is required an RBCA ratio of greater 
than or equal to 1.1. The RBCA ratio is computed by dividing Company's Net Liquid Capital (NLC) 
to its Total Risk Capital Requirement (TRCR). TRCR is the sum of: a) Operational Risk 
Requirement (ORR); b) Credit Risk Requirement which include requirements for Counterparty 
Risk, Settlement Risk, Large Exposure Risk, and Margin Lending/Financing Risk; and c) Position 
or Market Risk Requirement. 

On August 8, 2023, the SEC approved amendments to the 2015 Implementing Rules and 
Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code (the "2015 SRC Rules") and SEC Memorandum 
Circular (MC) No. 16, series 2004, relative to the settlement cycle from T+3 to T +2. 
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The Company's RBCA ratio as at years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are 169% and 21%, 
respectively. 

Details of computation of the Company's Risk Based Capital Adequacy Ratio are shown below: 

Net liquid capital 
Equity eligible for net liquid capital 
Ineligible assets 
Total 

Risk capital requirements 
Operational risk requirement 
Position risk requirement 
Counterparty risk 
Large exposure risk 
Total 

Risk based capital adequacy ratio 

Net Liquid Capital 

p 

p 

p 

2024 

79,808,456 
47,347,020 
32,461,436 

967,520 
14,410,312 

3,875,817 
19,253,649 

169% 

p 

2023 

49,601,928 
45,850,060 

3,751,868 

840,446 
13,515,103 

3,250,984 
17,606,533 

21% 

The Company is required, at all times, to have and maintain a Net Liquid Capital (NLC) of five 
million (P 5M) or 5% of its Aggregate Indebtedness (AI), whichever is higher. 

In computing for NLC, all non-allowable asset/equities, and collateralized liabilities will be 
deducted and allowable liabilities and equities are added to equity per books. 

Details of Company NLC as of years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are shown below: 

Net liquid capital 
Less: Required net liquid capital, higher of: 

5% aggregate indebtedness 
Minimum amount 
Required net liquid capital 

Net risk-based capital excess 
Ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net liquid capital 

Total Risk Capital Requirement 

Detail ofTRCR follows: 

A. Operational Risk 

2024 2023 
p 32,461,436 p 3,751,868 

974,942 758,811 
5,000,000 5,000,000 
5,000,000 5,000,000 

p 27,461,436 p {1,248,132) 
60% 401% 

======-

It is the exposure that is associated with commencing and remaining in business arising separately 
from exposures covered by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate 
of failed internal process, people and systems which include, among others, risk if fraud, operational 
or settlement failure and shortage of liquid resources, or from external events. 
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Below is the manual computation of operational risk requirement for the last three years: 

Revenue 2023 2022 2021 Average 

Commission revenue 345,208 p 1,594,659 p 1,904,464 p 1,281,443 
Interest income 20,563 18,569 25,908 21 ,680 
Net Recovery from 
market decline of 
Marketable Securities 
Owned 
Dividend income 3,224,558 3,298,581 2,649,273 3,057,471 
Gain on Sale of 4,860 86,394 1,118,623 403,292 
Marketable Securities 
Gain on Sale of other 
Assets 
Other income/revenue 107,749 75,242 38,144 73,712 
Total Revenue/Income 3,702,938 5,073,445 5,736,412 
Average of the last three 4,837,598 
year gross income 
Operational risk factor 20% 
Total operational risk 
requirement p 967,520 

The Company's Core Equity should, at all times, be greater than its Operational Risk Requirement. 

Core Equity refers to the sum of paid-up common stock, common stock dividends distributable, 
additional paid-in capital, surplus reserves excluding revaluation reserves or appraisal capital, and 
opening retained earnings adjusted for all current year movements. Core Equity shall exclude 
treasury shares and unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments (such as unrealized 
gain in value ofFVOCI). 

The Company has no operational risk exposure since its Core Equity is greater than the operational 
risk requirement as ealculated. 

B. Position Risk 

The Company is exposed to equity security price risk because of investments held and classified in 
Fair Value through Profit or Loss. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage 
its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. 
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the management. 

Below is the manual computation of position risk requirement as of the years December 31, 2024 
and 2023: 

2024 

Equities in PIDSIX 
Other equities outside the PIDSIX 
FX Position 

Total Market 
Value of 

Instrument 
P 9,316,081 

34,335,489 
798,381 

P 44,449,951 

Position Risk 
Factors 

25% 
35% 
8% 

Position Risk 
Requirement 

P 2,329,020 
12,017,421 

63,870 
P 14,410,312 
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2023 

Equities in PIDSIX 
Other equities outside the PHISIX 
FXPosition 

A. Large Exposure Risk 

Total Market 
Value of 

Instrument 
P 8,201,446 

32,584,688 
764,381 

P 41,550,515 

Position Risk 
Factors 

25% 
35% 
8% 
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Position Risk 
Requirement 

P 2,050,362 
11,403,591 

61,150 
P 13,515,103 

It is a risk to which a broker dealer is exposed to a single equity security or single issuer group. This 
is the maximum permissible large exposure and calculated as a percentage of core equity. 

The Company has a Large Exposure to single equity relative to a particular issuer company and its 
group of companies amounting to P3,875,817 and P3,250,984 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, which is not beyond the maximum permissible large exposure. 

B. Counterparty Risk Exposure 

Unsettled customer trades (arising from customer-to-broker agency relationship)- A counterparty 
exposure of this kind occurs when a) the customer poses the possible risk of failing to deliver 
securities on a sell contract or b) the customer poses the possible risk of failing to pay cash on a buy 
contract. 

Unsettled principal trades (arising from broker-to-broker or broker-to-exchange/clearing agency 
relationships). A counterparty exposure risk of this kind occurs when a) the broker dealer poses the 
possible risk of failing receive cash from its counterparty on a sell contract or b) the broker dealer 
poses the possible risk of failing to receive the securities from its counterparty on a buy contract. 
Debts/loans, contra losses and other amounts due- A broker dealer has a counterparty exposure if a 
debt/loan, receivable from a customer/client, contra loss, or any other amount due is not paid on its 
agreed due date. In the case of a contra loss, the due date shall be the date of the contra. 

The Company has no counter party exposure amounting in 2024 and 2023. 

As at December 31, 2024, the Company is in compliance with Risk Based Capital Adequacy 
Requirement. 

As at December 31, 2023, the Company was not able to meet the required Risk Based Capital 
Adequacy Ratio. This is due to the new computation implemented last August 2023 wherein the 
FVOCI was deducted at market price as ineligible asset and the cumulative gain of the same FVOCI 
was also deducted from the equity in the computation of Net Liquid Capital. 

NOTE 32 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal ( or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under 
the current market condition regardless of whether the price is directly observable or estimated 
using another valuation technique. 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding fair 
value hierarchy: 
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2024 

Fair Value 

Quoted prices Significant Significant 

Notes 
Carrying in active observable unobservable 
Amount markets inputs inputs 

{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 
Assets measured at fair 
value: 

Financial asset at FVPL 7 p 43,651,570 p 43,651,570 f p 

Financial asset at FVOCI 10 33,456,000 33,456,000 
Assets for which fair 
values are disclosed: 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 14,755,081 14,755,081 
Receivables from 
customers 8 783,903 783,903 

Other receivables 9 124,740 124,740 

Refundable deposits 15 291,044 291,044 ,. 93,062,338 ,. 77,107,570 p 15,954,768 f' 
Liabilities for which fair 
values are disclosed: 

Payable to customers 16 f 18,722,548 p p 18,722,548 p 

Payable to clearing house 17 147,990 147,990 

Mortgage payable 20 7,775,087 7,775,087 

Other payables 18 418,541 418,541 

Security deposits 28 184,646 184,646 ,. 27,248,812 p p 27,248,812 

2023 

Fair Value 

Quoted prices Significant Significant 

Notes Carrying Amount 
inactive observable unobservable 
markets inputs inputs 

(Level 1) (!,eve! 2) (Level 3} 
Assets measured at fair 
value: 

Financial asset at FVPL 7 p 40,783,134 p 40,783,134 

Financial asset at FVOCI 10 34,680,000 34,680,000 
Assets for which fair values 
are disclosed: 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 13,854,562 13,854,562 
Receivables from 
customers 8 976,383 976,383 

Other receivables 9 221,098 221,098 

Refundable deposits 15 185,895 185,895 

p 92,926,831 p 75,463,134 p 15,237,938 p 

Liabilities for which fair 
values are disclosed: 

Payable to customers 16 p 14,308,827 p 14,308,827 p 

Payable to clearing house 17 129,900 129,900 

Mortgage payable 20 10,549,091 10,549,091 

Other payables 18 571,385 573 084 

I' 25,560,902 p 25,560,902 p 
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Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
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The following financial assets and financial liabilities with net amowit presented in the statements 
of financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable matter netting arrangements and similar 
arrangements: 

December 31, 2024 
Payable to clearing house 

December 3 I, 2023 
Payable to clearing house 

Gross amounts recogoi:zed in the 
statements of financial position 

Financial asseb 
Financial 
Liabilities 

p p 147 990 

I' I' 129 900 

Net amount presented in 
statement of financial 

position 

p 147 990 

I' 129,900 

NOTE 33- RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Presented below is the reconciliation of the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities, 
which includes both cash and non-cash changes. 

2024 

Bil.lance u of Janua.-y 1, 2024 

C118h Oowfrom Financing Acthi:tics: 

&suan<"e ofsb111res 

AlHtional Borrfflltiog 

RCJlll)UleDt of BorrOWug 

Nou-ca.'ih financing aclhities 

Amortization ofintrrest on le~e 
liabilities 

BlllllllCC, DeC'embcr 31, 2024 

2023 

Balaoee as of January 1, 2023 

Clish Dow from Finaodng Atti\ities: 

Issuance of shares 

Additional Borr~ug 

Rep11yment ofBorrffl'i.ng 

Nou-c:uh 6nandng 11ethities 

Amorthation ofinterest on leB!le 
liabilities 

Blllan<'e, 0e<'ember 31, 2023 

p 

p 

p 

p 

~age Payable 

10,549.,DCJI P 

2,774,004) 

1.,.,, 
Llabilitits 

Share Cllp.lal 

65,600 P 56,250,000 

1,000,000 

(65,600) 

7,775,087 .a,P ____ _ p 57,250,000 

Mortgage Payable 
Liabilities 

Share c:ap.ta1 

13,319,151 P 318.,475 P 55,250,000 

1,000,000 

2,770,060) 265.008) 

12,133 

10,!149,091 P 65,600 ,a,P _ _,;;56:,.la;5;;;0a;.0;;;0;;;,0 

T""'1 

p 66,864,691 

1,000,000 

2,774.004) 

65,600 

p 65.025,087 

Total 

p 68,887,626 

1.000,000 

3,035,068) 

12,133 

p 66,864,691 

NOTE34- SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIED BY THE BUREAU OF 
INTERNAL REVENUE 

Presented below and in the succeeding pages is the supplementary information which is required 
by the Bureau oflnternal Revenue (BIR) wider Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-2010 and 34-
2020 to disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. This supplementary information is 
not a required disclosure wider PFRS Accounting Standards. 

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year required 
wider RR No. 15-20IO are presented below and in the succeeding pages. 



Cualoping Securities Corporation 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Revenue Regulation 15-2010 

a) Output VAT 

In 2024, the Company declared output VAT as follows: 

Taxable Sales (Commission Revenue) p 
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Tax Base Output VAT 
335,590 P 40,271 

The tax bases are included as part of Income in the 2024 statement of comprehensive income. 

b) Input VAT 

Movement in input VAT for the year ended December 31, 2024 follow: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Domestic purchase of goods and services 
Total available Input VAT 
Add: Payments during the year 
Application against VAT payable 
Balance, end of the year 

c) Taxes and Licenses 

Purchases 
p 

1,589,267 
p 

p 

The details of Taxes and Licenses account (Note 24) are broken down as follows: 

Business permit and licenses 
Real property tax 
Registration fee 

p 

p 

Input VAT 
1,427,643 

190,712 
1,618,355 

(40,271) 
I,578,084 

Amount 
74,849 
38,754 

500 
114,103 

The amounts of taxes and licenses shown above are included under the operating expenses in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

d) Withholding Taxes 

The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2024 are shown below. 

Withholding tax at source ( expanded) 
Withholding tax on compensation 

e) Tax Assessments and Cases 

p 

p 

Amount 
32,109 
27,256 
59,365 

As of reporting date, the Company has no pending tax cases under preliminary investigation, 
litigation and/or prosecution in court or bodies within or outside BIR. 

(j) Related Party Transaction 

The Company is not covered under Section 2 of the Revenue Regulation 34-2020 requirements and 
procedures for related party transaction, including filing of BIR Form 1709, Information Return on 
its Transactions with Related Party. 



SCHEDULE! 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES 
SUBORDINATED TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL CREDITORS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2024 

The Company has no subordinated liabilities as of December 31, 2024 



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
RISK BASED-CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORKSHEET PURSUANT TO 

SEC MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 16, AS AMENDED, THROUGH SEC 

MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 11, SERIES OF 2023 
December 31, 2024 

Assets 

Liabilities 

Equity u per books 

Adjostmenrs to Eqwty per books 

Add (Deduct) : 

Allowance for m.i.rk.ct decline 

Subordina1ed Liabilities 

Unrealized Gain/ ( Loss ) in proprietary accounts 

Deferred Jncomc Tax 

Deposit for Future Stock Sub,;criptioo (No application wilb SEC) 

Minority Interest 

Total Adjustments to Equity per books 

Equity .E.llg.ible For Net Liquid Capit2.l 

Coatiogcocics :and Guar.intecs 

Deduct: Contingent Liability 

Gullrantees or indemnities 

ln,ligible Assets 

a. Trading Right and all Other Intang1blc Assets (net) 

b. lntercompu.ny Receivables 

c. Fixed Assets~ net of 3.Ccumuhued :ind excluding those used :i.s colfateml 

d Prepayment from Client for E..i.rly Settlement of Account 

e. AH Other Cutrcot A.-.sct.~ 

f. Securities Not Readily Marketable 

g. Negative faposure (SCCP) 

h. NottS R~ivablc (non-trade rela.ted) 

i. Interest and Dividends Recciv3bles outstanding for mor~ too.n 30 days 

j . Ineligible fosurancc claims 

k. Ineligible Deposits 

I. Short Security Differences 

m. Long Security Differences not resolved prior to sale 

n. Other Assets including Equity Investment in PSE 

Tota.I ineligible asse~ 

Ne! Liquid Capit>I (NLC) 

~s: 

Operational Risk Reqt (Scb«lulc ORR-I) 

Position Risk Reqt (Schedule PRR-1) 

Couruerparty Risk (Schedule CRR-1 and detailed schedules) 

Large Exposure Risk (Schedule LE.RR-1, LERR-2, LERR-.3) 

LERR to a single clieot(LERR-1) 

LERR to a single debt (LERR-2) 

LE.RR to a single issuer and group of companies (LERR-3) 

Toti.I Risk Capital Rcquiremcul ( TRCR) 

Net RBCA Mllrgjn (NLC-TRCR) 

Li:Jbllitles 

Add: Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No :1pplication with SEC) 

Less: Ei'(clusions from Aggregate Indebtedness 

Subordinated Liabilites 

Loam secured by securities 

Loans secured by fixed J.Ssets 

Others 

Total adjwcm,nu to AI 

Aggregate indebtedness 

So/o of Aggregate lndcbttdncss 

Required Net Liquid C.11pital (> of S°/4 o( Al or PSM) 

Net Risk-based Capital Excess/ (Deficiency) 

Ratio of Al lo Net Uquld capital 

RBCA Ratio (NLC I TRCR) 

U7,282,965 

34,512,585 

92,770,380 

(U,961,924) 

(U.961,914) 

79,808,456 

352,000 

10,761,737 

546,881 

35,686.402 

47.347,020 

32.461,436 

967,520 

14,4l0.312 

3,875,817 

19,253,649 

13,207,787 

34,SU,585 

7.775.087 

7,238,663 

15,013,750 

19,498,835 

974,942 

5,000,000 

27.461,436 

60•/4 

169¾ 



SCHEDULE III 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
INFORMATION RELATING TO POSSESSION OR CONTROL REQUIREMENTS 

UNDER APPENDIX F OF SRC RULE 49.2.1 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

l. Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or 

dealers' possession or control as of the report date (for which instructions to reduce to 

possession or control had been issued as of the report date) but for which the required 

actions was not taken by respondent within the time frame specified under SRC Rule 

49.2-1: 

Market Valuation ................................................. P 

Numer of items ................................................. P ---------

2. Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to 

reduce to possession or control had not been issued as of the report date, excluding items 

arising from "temporary lags which result from normal business operations" as permitted 

under SRC rule 49.2-1 

Market Valuation ................................................. P 

Numer of items ................................................. P ---------



SCHEDULE IV 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESERVE REQUIREMENTS 

UNDER SRC RULE 49.2 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 

Particulars Credits Debits 

1. Free credit balances and other credit balance in customers' 
10,296,779 

security accounts. 
2. Monies borrowed collateralized by securities carried for the 
account of customers. 
3. Monies payable against customers' securities loaned. 

4. Costumers' securities failed to receive. 147,990 
5. Credit balances in firm accounts which are attributable to 
principal sales to customer. 

6. Market value of stock dividends, stock splits and similar 
distributions receivable outstanding over 30 calendar days old, 

7. Market value of the short security count differences over 30 
calendar days old. 

8. Market value of short securities and credits (not to be offset by 
long or by debits) in a 11 suspense accounts over 3 o calendar days. 

9. Market value of securities wbich are in transfer in excess of 40 
calendar days and have not been confirmed to be in transfer by the 
transfer agent or the issuer during the 40 days. 

I 0. Debit balances in customers' cash or margin accounts excluding 
737,316 

unsecured accounts and accounts doubtful of collection. 

11. Securities borrowed to effectuate short sales by customer and 
securities borrowed to make delivery on customers' securities failed 
to deliver. 
12. Failed to deliver customers' securities not older than 30 
calendar days. 
13. Others: 

Total 10,444,769 737,316 

Net Credit (Debit) 9,707,453 

Required Reserve (100% ofnet credit if making a weekly computation 
10,192,826 

and 105% ifmonthlv) 



SCHEDULEV 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
REPORT DESCRIBING MATERIAL INADEQUACIES FOUND TO EXIST 

OR FOUND TO HA VE EXISTED SINCE THE PREVIOUS AUDIT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

No material weakness in the internal control or material inadequacies in the practices and 

procedures for safeguarding securities were found since the date of previous report. 



SCHEDULE VI 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
REPORT OF MONTIIl. Y SECURITIES COUNT CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO 

SRC RULE S2.1-10, AS AMENDED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

There is no discrepancy in the result of the securities count conducted. Refer to the attached 

summary. 





Srnt~ NAMt: OF STOCKS 
COOR CUSTOMER'S ACCOUNT 

No,orSh■ru MArkctVah~ 

AM ASIAN AMALOAMA mo HOl..J}fNGS CORP. IS,000.00 24,ISO.OO 
AS ATOKD[OWEOOUCO.INC. "A" 4,9]].00 26,8H.S2 
A&,\ AJ:IA(.."OR.8 CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. •11.· lti,100.00 8,904.00 
ASS ABS-CBN CORPORATION 2U,6l9.00 86,683.80 
ABSP A8S-CBN HOLDINGS OOIUI PDR 9-0,300.00 )4J,140.00 
AC AYALt\ CORPORATION )2.97).00 19.'/S0,827.00 
AteN AC ENEJlOY CORPORATION l,2◄>t,ll8.00 K,976,5S1.00 
ACPH3 A VALA COI\ PORJ\ Tl ON l>lll!PERRIID Bl 7SU.00 1,SJ!il,000.00 
Al'R ALSONS CONSOLIDATl!D RP.SOURCES INC. I IS,000.00 Sl,900.00 
AEV A80ITtz [QUlTV Vl!NTURES, INC, 17,120.00 Sl8,07l.OO 
AGI ALLIANCJ!OLORAL, INC. 109,500,00 98S,SOO.OO 
Al ACOJH >.11NINOCO. INC. "A• 148,758.00 
ALCO ARTIL\LAND c.'ORPORATION ID,875.00 3,969.38 
AI.Cl'O ALCO PREF Sl!RIES D 2,000.00 ?28,ROO.OO 
/IJ.I AVALA LANDlNCORPORATP.D S39,54!il.OO 14,1)6,IU.80 
ALLOY AUDAYMARTS, INC. 2,61 D,000.00 H7,IJO.OO 
AJJ.HC A YA LALAND LOGISTICS HOLnlNOS CORP. 6,S68,IOO.OO 11,165,770.00 
ALTP.fl ALTl!RNEROY HOI.l)JNOS CORPORATION 700,000.00 840,000.00 
ANS A. SORIANOCORPORATtON ~AM 242,854.00 J,322,242.7:! 
AP ABOITIZ POWER CORPORATION 6),400.00 2,390,180.00 
APC APC GROUP, INC. 280,000.00 Sl,~00.00 
APL APOLLO OLORAL CAPITAL, tNC, 40,612,000.00 162,Sli,OO 
AN) ANGLO PHIL. HOLOrNOS (..'QRP. "A" 87.010.00 J9,IH.50 
APVI ALTUS PROPERTY VENTlJRES, INC. 69.00 574.0H 
A.PX APEX MINING L'O., INC. 9H,J36.00 1,123,459.20 
AR ABRA MlNlNO & INO'L CORP. 19,)20.000.00 811,372.00 
ARA ARAWETA l'ROPERTIES, rl\"C. ll,150.00 15,937.SO 
ARl!IT ARl!ITlNC. 1,442,100.00 ~4.727,69S.OO 
........ o R,\SLAO CORP • 1,080,000.00 1,1 12.,400.00 
AT ATU.S CONS. MIN[NC. k Ul!V'T. ",\• 990,395.00 4,3)7,9}(),IO 
ATI ASlAN Tl!RMJNAt INC. 1,921,900.M ll,689,JOO.OO 
A1N ATN IIOLOJNOS, INC. 7'10,000.00 400,400.00 
ATNB ATN IIOLDINC,S, INC. ~e~ IJ0,000.00 67,60().00 
AUS ASIA UNrrt:O BANK CORPORATION 91,100.00 6,0.ll,IS0.00 
AXU-.1 AXl:il.UM Rl:!SOURCiiS CORP. 7:1,SOO.OO 192,955.00 
DAV RAV 500,000 00 
BC Bl'NOUBTCORPORATION 26,)6?.00 IOS,451.14 
BCB BENOUETCOJll'ORATfON •o~ 9,471.00 37,JIS.74 
BDO BANCO DE ORO UNIV. BANK S,97S.OO 860,400,00 
BE BENOUBT EXPLORATION. INC. J,300,000.00 
BEL Bf LU: COltPOllA TION 692,979.00 1,IS0114S.14 
BELW RELU-: CORPORATfONWARRANT 199,11 7.00 l,384.99 
BIi Bii llOLUINGS,!NC. 1,930.00 I,) 12,400,00 
131!1 BOULE\' AR[> IIOLDrNGS, fNC. ?,630,000.00 194,620.00 
BKR BRIOHT KINDLE R.l!S. & rNV. INC. IS0,000.00 148,SOO.OO 
BLOOM BLOOMBh'ltRYRESOR.TSCORPORATION 61,000.00 ll 1,-140.00 
BNCON BANK.OF COMMERCE 20.000.00 IJS,000.00 
131'1 BANK OF TUE PHIL ISLANDS 6,765.00 82S,J:30.00 

•• RR l,lS0,0~.00 
BRN A. BROWNCOl\tPANY 48.113,00 26,943.28 
BSC BASIC ENU.OV CORP 791,799.00 II0,991.tl6 
C CIIELSEA LOGISTICS llOLDrNOS CORP. .530,400,00 694,824.00 
CDC CHrNA DANKINCl CORPORATION 4),654.00 2,772,029.00 
CED CfllU AIR, INC. 15,600.00 440;100.00 
CEBCP CEBU,\JR, tNC.PREF£RRED 4,191.00 l<M;S89:SO 
cru CENTRO ESCOlAlt UNIVERSITY 16,100.00 '198,180.00 
CIII' CEMEX UOLDC\'OS PIIILIPPINES, 11'\C l ,857,97UO l,3071195.~0 
cu CEl:llJ LANDMA!iTER INC, 41,600.00 118.190,00 
CM CARMEN MlNOAWAO -40,000,000.00 
CNl'F CENTIJRY l'ACIF!C FOOD, [NC. 3,000.00 IZS,850.00 
CNVRO CONVERGE INFO, AND COMM. TECII SOL UT 4Sl,0OO.00 '/.295,2&0.00 
co CONSOLIDATED MJNES 17,SOOOO 
COAL COAL ASIA IIOLDl1'0S 11'\C. 10,000.00 1,540.00 
COSCO COSCO CAPrTAl.. lNC. -106,500.00 2, 186.970.00 
CPO CENTURY PROPERTIES OROUP, lNC. 10,IOJ,000.00 4,243,260.()l'J 
CREff CnlCORE ENl:ROY REIT CORP. J,6S0.800.00 11, I 34.940.00 
crs CTS OLOBAL EQUnYOROUl'. 0-:C. 500,000.00 315,000.00 
CYUR CYUER DAY CORPORATION 4,-'70,2ti0.0Q 1,-17.S,ISHIO 
DO DOUDI.EDRAfiON PM.Ol'E!RTIBSCORl', 37,SOO.OO 382,SOfJ.OO 
l)DMl'R ODMP REIT, 11\'C'. 4,0SS,000.00 4,179,740.00 
Dlll'k. DOUtlLEbRACiON PM.OP. CORI' .• PREFERRED 61.20000 ~,94.S,6l0.00 
l>EU-.1 DEL MONTE. PACIFIC UMITEO 
UFNN DFNNINC, 10,000.00 28,500.00 

bEALRR'S A<'COUNT 

CUALOl'ING SECURlTJ[S CORl'OfiA'l'ION 
STOCK POSITION PER LOC ... TlON R.£t•om· 

i\s or l)ecembcr 31, 2024 

PUii .. CRNTJtAL b[f'0$1TOkY 

Nu.ofSbsrct l\1■rblV1lut No. afSh1ru Marl.:.:r Value 

15,000.00 24,150 
-1,933,00 16,8}6 

16,1100.00 8,904 
20,639.00 116,68-1 
90,)00.00 343,140 
32,97l.OO 19,7SO,IU7 

lla,421 S5J,684 2,:!82,559.00 9,S30,216 
7SO.OO 1,S)Y,000 

il.S,000.00 .Sl,900 
17,120.00 5H,07! 

109,.SOO.OO ?8.S,.Soo 
148,751$.00 

10,875.00 3,969 
2,000.00 ?28,800 

16,SIO -140,422 556,359.00 14,S76,G06 
2,610,000.00 J◄7,ll0 

7,000 11,900 6,575,100.00 11,177,670 
700,000.00 ll-40,000 
242,854.00 J,322,24) 

63,400.00 2,390,180 
'280,000.00 Sl.800 

~.632,000.00 162,528 
116,810.00 19,065 

69.00 !74 
"2 97) Yll,618.00 1,120,981 

19,320,000.00 KIJ,872 
31 ,250.00 IS,918 

65,000 2,◄ti6,7SO I, 507, I 00.00 57,194,-44.S 
S,000 S,l!O 1,085,000.00 1.111.sso 

12 ·~ 990,417.00 4,lJK,026 
IS0,000 2,550,000 2,071,900.00 lS,2l9,300 

770,000.00 400,400 
130,000.00 67,600 

l ,937 242,1:'.6 102,037.00 6,'Z7S,276 
74,500.00 192,955 

soo,000.00 
lt9,6:?6 1,149,115 )16,188.00 1,255,'ZM 

1,3$4 7,)0j 11 ,ll.S.OO 44,611 
19,777 2,847,U 8 2S,7.5l.00 l ,708,2t.:8 

218,990 l,Sl8,990.00 
692,979.00 1,IS0,345 
199,117.00 :i,.i,,-

l,9JO.(l0 1,)12,-'0Q 
2,630,000.00 194,620 

150,000.00 u ~,$00 
68,000.00 ll 1,440 
20,000.00 llS.000 
6,165.00 !12.S,llO 

3,250,000.00 
42,41 6.00 2J,7'B 

61,14-l 8,840 855,941.00 119,1132 
,0,600 66,1!!6 5111,000.00 761,IICI 

0 ,654.00 2,772,029 
J0,000 847,500 4S,600.(l0 l,28iU OO 
16,438 S67,III 20,629,00 ? 11,701 

361100.0(l 498,180 
1,8S7.97S.OO l ,J07,l96 

44,600.00 118,190 
-40,000,000.00 

12,000 S0},400 IS,000 00 629,250 
S,000 80,700 457,000.00 7,375,910 

:17,SOO.i'IO 
10,000.00 1,540 

-40(i,:500.00 2.IM,910 
10,103.000.00 <l,Z'il,260 

60,000 IRl,000 3,710,SOO.OO 11,317,940 
500,000.00 llS,000 

100 2ll 4,470,'~GO.Cla 1,475,4 17 
:37,SOOOO 182,SOO 

S00,000 515,000 4,558,000.00 4,694,NO 
5,000 ,m,,ooo 66,200.00 6,-04,640 

12, 242 47,744 12,242.00 ',7,74,1 
10,000.00 28.SOcJ 

INVAUL1' TR.ANSP>:R OFFICE INTRA,'i.Sll" 

No, ofShru 1'111itl1t1V1do, No, orSh11h'i M"rkct VDluc No.or~11■rn ~hrkd V1loc 
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 
-. 
-. 
--. 
-
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 
200.00 ?O 

1,000.00 J,45(1 . 
-. 
. 
. 
. 

. 

. . 

. 

3,61)'1.(t{l l , 19fJ 

. 
. 

. 

. -
. 



STOCI< NAME OF STOCKS 
f'OhR 
DHI DOMJNIUN HOLDINGS. INC. 
OITO DITO CMF. HOWINOS CORP. 
OIZ DIZON COPPEM-Sll VER, MfNP.S, ~C. 
llMC: DMCI HOLDINGS lKC. 

OM\\' D.M. Wl'NCESLAO &: ...SSOCIA TES, INt. 
DNL ll&.L IND~'TRTES, INC. 
DW(' l}ISCOVP.RV \\'ORLDCORPORATION 
ECVC F.AST COAST VULCAN MINING CORP. 
l!EI P.PJ CORPORATION 
EErPA am CORP. PRllfERRl!D SHS SERIES A 
EIRA liXPOllT AND INDUSTRY BANK, rNc..·. -A-
~LI P.MPIR.E P.:;.ST IIOLDINO 
EM.I BMPERIIOOR. INC. 
FNEX i!NfiX fiNP.ROV CORP. 
~VER EVER-GOT~O RES, & HOLDINGS, 11,.,'C, 
IJW l!AST Wl!ST BANKINOCORP. 
FA f,'lL,-AM RI!S, 
fAF FlRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HU>OS. fl,!C:. 
Fil SAN MIQUEL FOOD ANn EHNli.RAae. 1Nc, 
FCO FIGARO COFFEl':IOROUP INC, 
PIX: FILJNVEST DEVELOPUCNT CUlll'. 
m FILlffJ\'O FUND, INC. 
FILRT Fri.INVEST ,um, INC. 
m F & J PRINCB HOLDINOSCOkP. ~A-
FJPB F &I J PRINCP. HOLDINOS CORP. "Bw 
fll FrLINVEST LAND INCORPOR.A TED 
fl<I OLOB.o\L FERRONICK£L HOLDINGS, INC. 
fl'll FrRST PHIL. HOLDlf\:O CORl'. 
>1'1 FORUM l•ACIFtc, rNC. 
FRUIT FRUIT ;.s ltOLDIN'OS, INC. 
GEO OEOORACB RES., l'IUL.,fN'C. 
OllRI GLODAL-h'ST ATE Rl!SORTS. INC. 
GLO GLOUE nLECOM OMCR, INC. 
GMA7 GMA NblWORK. INC. 
OMAJ' GMA JIOLl>INGS, CNC. 
GO GOTESC.'O l • .\Nl>, rNC. "A• 
GOD GOT2SCO LANO, tNC, ~a" 
GREEN GREENHROY JfOt.l>INOS lNCORl'O.RATlil> 
OTCAI' GTCAPITAI. IIOWINGS, rNC. 
orrrn OTCAPlTAL IIOLl>INOS, INC. SE.RIES B 
HOME ;.LUIO!l.4ECORP. 
HOUSE (8990) 1101.UINOS. rwc. 
IITI IIA\!STALK. rNC. 
I 1-REMlf,INC. 
ICT rNTt. CONTAINER T~RMtN'AL SV. IN 
IMI IN"fEORA TSO lll!CROLELP.CTRONICS, INC. 
INtl INCO MINING t'ORl'. •n • 
INl'RA PJIILIPrlNE INFRAOEV IIOLDrNOS INC, 
ION l()NICS,11\'C, 
ll'O IVEOrLE, INC. •A• 
IS IS.LAND INFORMATION&. ruCHNOLOOY,INC 
JfC JOLLIDE6 fOOD CORPORATION 
JGS JO su"wrr HOLDING~. fNC, 
KEEl'R TIIE KEEPERS HOLDINGS, ~C. 
KEr KEPPEL l'IIILS, PROPERTIES, INC. 
KPH KEl'PIIIL PHIL, HOLDINGS INC. 
KPIIB t..'"El'PIIIL Plm .. ,IIOLUJNOS INC. ~o• 
LC LEl'ANTO CONS. MINrNO CO. "A" 
LCD LEPAN'r'O CONS. & MININ'O CO. "0" 
LOTO PACI.FIG ONUN£SYSTEM5 COl~P. 
LPZ LOPEZ HOLDINGS CORl"ORATION 
lJtC LANDOIL kESOUR.CE.~ COfl.f>. "A" 
I.SC LORI!NZO SHIPPINO CORP. 
>,fA MANll.>i >AINJt-'G •A" 
MAD M;.Nn.A MINTh"O •o" 
~tAC MACRO ASIA CORPORATION 
MAC\\! MACR.OASIA CORf'OR.ATION WARRANTfi 

MARC MARCVliNTURES I IOLDINOS, INC. 
MA,'\!S MAX'SOROUP,INC. 
MB MANlLA BULLETIN ruo. CORP. 
Mll"r METROB;.NK ANO TRlJST COMrANY 
•te MA1lSTEEL CONS, INC. "A• 
MCD MARSTHL CONS. ll•iC. "11" 
MRUIC MEl>ILIN~ UtsTH.llllfrt>RS INC(lRl'ORATED 

nJ!)TOMER'S ACCOUNT D£.ALF.R1.S ACCOl!NT 
102.-165.00 16),94-l.OO 
'2S9,S34.00 42S,717,76 

l,OSS,00 2,Ml.65 
638,100.00 7,447.406.00 100,000 
141,500.00 7111 ,0HO.OO 62,000 
100,000.00 609,000.00 60,000 

1,291,000.00 2,S6S,920.00 160,000 
73,01,_6.00 22,6315.06 JOO 
2l,2SS,00 !ll.111,go 4,775 
14,860.00 1,471,1~.oo 

340,264.00 
94,695.00 11,)6:l,,40 

10,000 
3,9SI.OO 44,7SS.Ci0 l,759 

10,000.00 7,M0.00 
29,469.00 290,269.65 49,848 
27,SOIJOO 
10,000.00 6,SOD.00 
3,000.00 158,250.00 

560,000.00 AS.1,600.00 
6,316.00 31,201.04 

11,46S.OO 67,299.S5 
906.21&.00 2,673,)U.IO 10,SOO 

1,091,900,00 l,729,750.00 S6,400 
11,000.00 S9,210.00 

S~l ,498.00 424,49},54 
181.00 188.24 

l l.JSl.00 767.709,00 
210,000.00 Sl,660.00 

92,000.00 58,880.00 
886,2◄1.0Q 77,989.21 

7U2.00 449.28 
2,67\'i,OO S,l<M,384.00 "' 291,500.00 t,7Hl,06S.OO 

71.400.00 446,96~.oo 
14,957.00 M7l 

266.00 1,4513 
14,6-44.00 2,782.36 
6.918.00 4,S52,0~4.00 
2.000.00 1,960,0001}0 

30,000.00 l.9_.200.00 
SS,BSS.00 507.721.95 

100,000.00 210,000.00 
17.015.00 l,964.SO 
5,771.00 1,217.606.00 

544,462.00 811,248.38 "' 4,000,000.00 
I ,0R.8,000.00 l26,400.00 

850.00 714.00 
22.750,00 154,472.50 

200,000.00 18,1100.00 
20,314.00 S,617,796.0Q 
12,100.00 24US5.00 

2,747,000.00 6,lls,810,00 
l7J.0)8,00 482,1 76.02 

noo 1,267.42 
100.00 l,fl8 ... 00 

Sl,29Q,41 I.OO l,431.060.54 142,ISO 
20,57S.40I.OO 1,371,551.87 

22,500.00 59,62S.OO 
142,552.00 38'-,890.40 

35,294,000,00 100,000 
37.500.00 3'2,250.00 

9,871,2S2.00 29,634.76 13,212 
2.799,186.00 8,197.56 8,296 

780.00 A,243.2.0 
5,500.00 41.25 

23S,620.00 176,JIS.OO 
25,000.00 li6.1S0,00 

3,7S5.00 705,94 
376,836.00 17,132,192 00 2~.0}') 

S,950,000.00 
1,SS0,00000 

865.500.00 26fl.30S.00 '16,000 

CUALOPING SECURl'flRS CORl'ORAl'JON 
STOCK POSITION PER L.OC1U"JON n£POIH' 

As or December 31, -zo:Z4 

l'JUL CENTitAL bF.l'OSlTORY 

JOZ,465.00 16J,94<1 
2S'J,SB4.00 425,7111 

l,OSS.00 2,142 
1,082,000 7fl8,JOO.CO tl,S2'1,ol0li 

142,240 203,S00.00 1,123..)20 
l6S,◄00 160,000.00 974,400 
179,200 2,451,000.00 2,745,1'20 ., 73,)26.00 22,711 

17,190 28,021.00 100,8?6 
14,860.00 1,471,140 

340,.264.00 
94,195.00 11,303 

IS.0,6DO 10,000.00 180.600 
S,795 10,710.00 S3,5So 

J0,000.00 7,li~(I 
491,001 7!il,ll7.00 181.112 

27,SOo.oo 
10,000.00 li,500 
3,000.00 IS!l,250 

560,000.00 :181,600 
6,)16.00 Jl,:.!OI 

I 1,◄65.00 61,JOO 
J0/175 9 16,718.00 2,704.,118 

141,000 1, 148,)00.00 2.1:170,?SO 
ll ,000.00 59,210 

5111,498.00 414,49◄ 

181.00 "' ll,JSl.00 7117,709 
210,000.00 Sl,660 
92.000.00 58,81i0 

8116.1•11,00 77,989 
702.00 .... 

1,Jgl,54-1 3,217.00 '1.025.928 
291,500.00 1,781,065 
7 1,400.00 446,964 
IS,830.00 
1,759.00 

11,,M-c.oo 2.752 
6,913.00 4,5S2,044 
2,000.00 1,980.000 

30,000.00 19.200 
S.5,85S.Cl0 S0?,722 

200,000.00 210,000 
11,015.00 J.%,t 
5,771,00 2,227,606 

514 544,807.00 811,762 
4,000,000.00 
1,038,000,00 326,400 

850.00 714 
22,750.00 154,41] 

200,000.00 28,800 
20,884.00 S,611,796 
12,100.00 241,6S5 

2,747,000.00 6.12S,810 
173,0)8,0{I 482,776 

77.00 1,167 
100.00 I .HM 

9,526 Sl,441,591.00 3,'1'1~,587 
20,57.5,401.00 l,J7S.SS2 

22,500.00 59,625 
142,372.00 384,-10~ 

JS,394,000.0CI 
37,500.00 :n,2so 

,o 9,731,66<1.0(I 29.)(,l 
2l 2,80'1.482.00 1.,122 

780.00 4.24) 
s.sao_oo .. 

235,620.00 176,715 
25,000.00 c~.,so 
J,ns.oo 706 

1.Ro2.R08 .i:Ol,8'15.00 28,932,B~O 
S,9S0,000.00 
l ,SS0,000.00 

29,760 961.S00.0{I 29S,U<,S 

IN VAULT TRANSl1l'.ff. OFFICE ISTRAl\iSIT 
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12.00 " 
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5(10.Cltl ,,o 
. 
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 

180.00 '" 
IOJ,800.00 lll . 

. 

J0.00 2, 160 
. 



SIULK 
NAME OF.sTOCKS 

ronF. CU .. fOMRR'S ACCOUNT 
MEO MEOAWORLOPROP.&. HotOrN'GS CNC. 607,0 l<i.00 1,2'1·1,Jl::!.80 
lt.lFJI MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY ~;..~ 41,21).00 2),517,94-1.00 
Mt·c MANlltlFE! PJNANC:IAL CUltfl. 116.00 J$J,J60.0D 
>IG MILLENNIUM GLORAI. HOLt>rNGS, INC. :so.am1.oo 4,10IJ".Oll 
MOH Mf:TRO GLODAL HOlDrNGS L'OitPOMTIO'N 900.00 
J.t}{l' MABUHA Y HOLDlli,'GS CORP ,U2,10D.Oll 61'i,3411.IO 

'" Ml \8,llOD.00 
MIC MANILA JOCKEY CLUB l,4~6.l70.0i. >1,J76,6)S,90 
!.tJlC MIC INVESTMENTS CORPORATION 12,IDD.cm 12,100.00 
MM Mll.RRYMART<.'ON.SUMFR CORP. 8,llOO.OfJ 4,1!100.00 
MMC MARCOPl'IiR MJNJNO CORP. 11,100.00 
MON MONllRAOON l},,,'Tl:!!(NA'rlO:MAL PHIL 255,-100.0lt 
MONDI! MONDENISSIN COnPORATION ll6,JOO.Olt l.ti92,181).0ll 
MRL: MRC ALLIED JNDUSTRfi!S, fNC. l),000.0IJ I0,920.00 
MREIT MRf!IT, JNC. 791,9011.0lt lll,i6l,CJ46.00 
Mlt.SOI METRO RETAILSTOR.es GROUP, D-!C. 6ti0,tl-DO.OD ~16,000.0D 
MWC MANILA \YATl!.RC.-UMPANY, me. SJ,000.0Q 2,lAi,OD0.00 
MWLDE MEGAWJDE. C.'ONSTRUCTJON CORP. 17,965.00 43,6S4.95 
NJ NIAAO MINERI.LRE.SOUllCES CNT'L, TNC 12,000.00 -l,620.00 
NIKL 'NICKP.L I\S(/\. CORPOR.,\ TION lU,6ll.OO 989,879.11 
NRCi' THE NATIONAL REINSURANCB CORP. 30-,000.00 20,700.00 
N');.OP~ NF~"TOliNESlS CORPORATION 12,~so.oo 
um OCRANAOOLO(PHILIPPTNRS), INC. 6!,100.00 8Sl!,024.00 
OM OMICO CORPORATION 101>,l.45.00 lt1,S2~.S9 
UMW OMICO CORPOllA TION WARP.ANT l:SS,000,000.00 ll,000.00 
OMW2 OMIC:O COltPORATKIN WARRANTS 2 271.l-19.QO 1,771.49 
OPM ORID'TALJ>ITT. & Mi.LS. CORI> ... ,,._~ 2U'll,7>7.QO IS!l,931.00 
OP.MU ORIENT AL PE'f. & M.RLS. CORP ~e• IJ,39!1,648.00 I00,4R9.86 
ORe ORIENTAll'EN!NSUU. llES. GROlJ1.•, rNC. 6,CIQ0.00 2,G41)_t)(l 

0V PIIILOORILL COJll•OP..A TIO~ ., A• IIJ,629,929.00 621,224.47 
PA l'ACIFICA TNCORl'ORAT'EO ]00.00 480.00 
)'AL l'ALIIOLOINOSINC. .21,400,00 10~.l/.)l'J,t)[J 
PBB PIIILIPl'lNti DUS/NESS BANK M.787.00 6IS,73:l-.90 
l'BC PIIILll'l'lNli BANK Of COMMUNlCATION JS.00 S4S.}O 
PCOR PETRON CORPORATION 90,231.00 219.261.~l 
l'CI' PICOP RES., INC. "A' I.OS7,21S.00 
l'liRC Pl:.IROl!Nl!.RGY RtiSOURCC!S CO!{P. l3.912JX'I 47,'96.◄0 

PGOLD PUREOOW l'R1C8 C'l,U8, l~'C. 16,100.00 496.6135.00 
PIIA PREMfER HORIZON ALLr.Ah"CB CORP. 20,000.00 1,4!!.0.00 
NIR 1'1-{ RESORTS OROUL' HOI.Ul'NGS, TNC 91,0[10.00 49,680.00 
PIZZA SHAK.l:Y'S 111ZZA ASlA \'l:::NTURES. rNC. 30,000.00 2)9,700.00 
I'LUS DIOl11LUS INTERACl'IVE COJlP. 1.4j,94G.OO 6,677,431.90 
rMrc PANASONIC MANUftACTURINO l'JHL.,CDRI'. 4ff6.011 2.66).2~ 
Pl< PIONEER. NA TUR"L ltfSOURCfS CORP. :uoo,000.00 
!'NB VIIILlt'PINE NATIONAL BANK 14,841.00 965,151.LO 
PNOW nm .. NATIONAL BANK WARRANT 610.00 
l'NC PIUL. NATIONALCO:t,ISTM. CORi'. 104,onn.oo 
l'flU PHIL. OIL Ul?VELOl1 ME.h'T un. rNC. JS,IS0,0-00.0tl 
l"OOEt l'00131 1 ... 100,000.00 
Pl'I l'IIILTOWN l'ROPERTIES, INC 1s,1n2.oo 
PftC PHILIPPINE RACIN{j C:LUD, INC. 119.Z02,•194.00 1,sH,◄ 11,,rnrno 

PkEIT PREMIER£ ISLAND POWER REIT CORP. 100,000,00 221.000.00 
l'-RF-ID PETRON CORP. SERIES 40 l'ltEFERJU!U .Stl0,(10 52:5,{IQ{J.00 
PkF4l! PETRON CORP, S!!lUES 41i PREf'ERRED 500.00 525,-000.tlO 
PRIM PRIMEMEDlAIIOLOfNOS. J'NC_ 200JIO 426.0() 
Psn PHILIPPINE SAYINGS BANK LSI.GO 10,SH.20 
t>Sl! rtllLIPPINE S10CK EXCI !ANOE 271.-00 4S.42~.0Q 
Prr PT&TCORP. U0,3ll.{l0 
ex PIIILE:X MtNINO CORP, 932:,l?(dlO 2,-000,'nl.[M 
1'XP PXr ENEROY C0Rf'ORA1'10N 12l..J !l5.tl0 354,114.95 
RCS RlL\L COMMERCfAL. BANK CORI'. <l<il,97.HlO Ll,ilH,ClSL'i_65 
RC~ RLCOMMERCIAL U'IT, INC. 1,498.{iOO.CO 1,766,Uo.{IO 
REG REPUBLIC GLASS HOLDINGS CORP. 40,859.IJO ll2,~622, 
RFM RFM C.'OR1'0RATlON 26.l,-OSl.OO 1,lll,11,llll.24 
RICH RICII 2,000,000.0Q 
RLC ROBINSONS LAND CORP, s~.llrJ n .iso,oo 
~LT l'IIIJ... REALTY ANll HOLDCNGS 'l,42'4,S8S.0() S:Jl.~800 
ROCK it.OCKWl!LL LANO 6,721.0ll ID,141.71 
•re REYNOLDS rmurrJNE CORi'. 6f)S,97S,ll0 
~ SAMAlt MJNINO CO, INC. 3.000.<lOrJ.00 
SBS SBS Pl IILIPl'INES CORI'. 2011.mr 1,02!1.6!1 
sec SEMIRARA MtsrNG ANO PGWERCOllP. .1&0,2«~.oo ll,SB.172.00 
sece SECURITY DANK CO)IJ• J,nJ.Or'l 274,ll I.OD 
SFI SWIFT 1-000. l..'\C. 125,{l5J.00 "l,2HO"I 

DE.ALF.R'S ACCOUNT 

91J 

H,465 
4:S,767 

Jl,600 

42' 
.56,ZS(I 

4,000 

222 

202 

1,466,000 

204,000 
3,B•I 

CJ,77l 
.10,oao 

1,266-0110 

1,5S7 
tJ,OS5 

" 

CUALOrl:-.G SECURJTIES CORPORA'flON 
S'l'OCK POSl'flON PI:R. LOC:A1'1ON lt£l"OR·1• 

Al er llett011ler Jl. ?01◄ 

l'JIIL CIINTRAL D£POil10itY 

M7,0l6,00 1,2~4.)t,:3 
48,lll.OO JJ,,17~,I.$~ 

!Ht.00 ISl,360 
SC,000.00 4,700 

700.00 
412,100.00 66,H8 

18,97l.OO 
l,~46,170.00 4,J76,6)6 

12,100.00 12,100 
ll,000.00 4,1100 

11 ,TCO.OO 
2SS,'400.QO 
lll'i,ll>0.00 2.~92,180 

IJ,000.00 10,920 
791,9110.00 I0,5(1:l.'H6 
630,000.00 316,000 
u,ooo.uo 2,241,000 
17,~65-00 43,655 
12,000.00 •1,620 

l8l,6UJlO 939,!119 
J0,000.00 10.700 
12,lSO.DO 
61,200.00 !ISM2-l 

109,US.OO 1-1,SJO 
t,S,000,000.00 ll,000 

277,149.00 ::i,7?:l 

"' 2Q,!R8,X77.00 15•'l,S711 
J4l 13,4~.41:S.OO l00,!133 

6,000.00 2,6-1-0 
252 ! l, 5-S2.,3"Z9 .00 626,-644 

2.!0.00 400 
2,119 21,123.00 10g,049 

54:S,E,25 120,037.00 l,!6'1,JS11 
)5.00 '" !8,9R6.00 2 16,2H.i 

1,0S7,21S.OQ 
13,912.00 47,IJ~(j 

l2l,400 20,100.0(1 420,(]jjS 
20,000.00 J,49'0 
92,000.00 -19,630 
30,000.00 219,7.00 

6,027 2◄6,16MO 6,6tl3AH 
486.00 l,6!il 

1,500,000.00 
S,S9S JS,045,00 1170,741 

62.0.0(1 
104,000.00 

15,150,000.{ICI 
14,200,0ff0.00 

1:S,702.00 
17,262,000 221,668,4q.1.oo J,SSl,-679,4Si 

100,0fJO,tlO 221,0CIO 
500.00 525,l)(lQ 
SOO.OG SlS,000 
2{10.00 .,. 
Ul.Oo 10i5l4 

33,456,000 20-4,277:ClO 33,SOl.,429 
'121,~6.nO 
9!1.1147.UO 1,Sl1"J,85J 
12.1,115.<lO 354,11.5 

2n,or.2 411,74S.-OO 11,2n,na 
175,S{JO 1,528,fi~OJIO 8,9'1l,Jt0 

l,<l!U,.:S<lO l,306,IIS9.IJO l.$9l,861 
2{il,OS2,QO l,O?R,OH 

2,0110,0011.ClO 
20,70S 5,SS7.00 73,90S 
l,flR7 <\,4]8,61'0.00 Sl2,64l 

6,72UJO Hl,149 
<>05,97).00 

3,000,llOOJl<I 

"' 27-1.00 1,l.:i<'i 
JG0.2R0.01 ll,573,772 

l ,153.0D 274,ll! 
125,0H.0-0 7,25'J 

li'lVAtJL1' Tlt~"l'it-'F.ROFnCE IN TRANSIT 

-
100.00 48,1100 

-
200.00 

-

-
-

-

:200.tlO 

240,.345.00 1,779 -

111,000.<lO .,, 
S0-00 80 

1,2.is .<10 3,025 

-

329.011 "' 

-

! ,Sl):0,00 l~,9S{l 
250.0fl JO -

-

-

-
-



S ,uc~ 
NAME OFS"fOCf(S 

t'OhF. C."USTUME:R'SAC"COU"4"1' 
SFIP SFI PREPEltAC:D 11.~tS-OO 19,549,20 

SUI SOLID OClOUP, r>;C. 4:5,000.09' 46,)5D.00 
SGP SYNERGY mun & rmv. rm1.s .. 1Nc. l,S-49

1
401>,00 l~,11'4,l:?O-UO 

SHLPH .SHELi.. PU.JPrNAS CORPORATION 4S,!DO.O& HJ,50D.OO 
SIIN<i SllhNO PROPERTIES, 0-:C. 4~,6Sol.OO 191,696,76 
SLf SUNUFI! FINANCIAl-.1>,/C. 10.00 lO,ltl0.00 
SU .!>fA, LUCIA u\ND, INC l,239,1lll,OOO.Oa l,S9S,'Zl7,000.00 
SM SM lNVl!STMOO COR.1'. lJ40.00 3,001,660.00 
SMB SAN MIOUl:!L BRl!WF.RY, Th:C. 1,000.00 :1'9,]00.00 
SMC SAN MlOUP.L CtlkPOIUTlON 'W' 6ll,420.0D S,SK4,110.0U 
SML'2F SMC..: SE!lllF.S "1-P 40.ooo.oa 2,9}2,000.00 
SMC::U SMC PIU!:fERt\l;llSJ,.:f{IJ,!S ~-J M,000.00 4,653,000.00 
Sl\tC2T. SMC PRl!ill!tlR'ED.SHAIUlS Sl!RJES 2-L 800.00 61,110.00 
SMt:lO SMC PRl!FliRRED SHARES SERIE'S '2-0 80,000.0@ 6,j.R4,000.00 
SMPH SM l>IOMHliOU>INOS 1NC. ll,OW.01> IM,016.35 
soc SDCRESOUllC'F.S, rNC. l0',000.01> S,SlD.00 
s•c ~1lC PO\VF.R.CORPORATION 20,000.00 180,200.00 
SIIM SEAFRONT RESOtlRCL'S CORP, ll,l!.S7.00 36,014.07 
SY! S!i!. GROUP, rN'C. &1,000.00 276.~0.00 
ST! sn BDUCA TION svsrm.-ts HOLDrNGS.,TI'tC 1,610,000.00 2,157,400.00 
SUN SUNTRUST HOME DP.VELO PERS, !WC. 46,000.00 41,400.00 
SWM SA1'TfARYWA RF.S Mr\NUFA.CTURINO COR 1,100.00 
r TKC MET Ats CORPOkATfON 190,000.00 SS,100.00 
TAOI TRI\NS:11.M."IFIC BROADBAND GROUP, UlT'L 20,000.00 1,700.00 
TECH CIRTl!KUOl.DING!i PHILS. CORJI. ,,111s.oo 6,l16.l0 
TE.CHW CIJll'eKHOLDJ'NGS PHIL CORP. -WARRANT l,78S.OO l.75 
TI!L PHrL LONG DIST,\KCE fY.LEPHONf.: CO 13,459.M I 114:t9,4u~.oa 
TEW t•LDT (10"-~ .. REF.J SERIESO j0,00 600,00 
'ffC 1-.,YC RHOEVELOl'Mf!NT CORPORATION 50,9oo.r.in 2,799,SOO.OO 
TFJ!r TOP i'RONTIEJl :NVESTMENT HLDGS ll,0W.Q0 7513:,-462,00 
iUOS HAR&OR STAllSHIFfINO SE.R.Vl{'~S. INC. 
UBI' UNION RANK Of'TH6 l'IIIL. 7,610.00 274,680.00 
UNI UNIOIL R~OVR(."1:S & HOLL>rNGS co . .,!NC 761,000.00 181,◄52.00 

UP UNI\IEM.SAL lt.lCIIITt:11:!LI.) t•ROP.llLOOS.INC' 1,620,000.00 
UPM UNITE!.D PAP.AGO?-: MrN[MG CORI'. 10,&~7,50{)_QQ si.-us.oo 
UPSON Ul•SON 001:Rh'ATIONAL CORl>. 100,000.00 68,000.00 
URC UNIVl!kS-'L 'RODINA CORI'. 1,000.00 79,000.00 
uw UNlWIDE HOLDINOS, !NC. 335,000_CIO 
V VANTAOEEQUIT?ES, INC. 511,000.00 l6"1,700.oo 
VITA YITARICH C'ORPORATION s,aoo.no 2,7!10.00 
VLL VISTA l./\ND,'4.Llf'SSCAPl!S, INC. Zi0.00 370.00 
VMC VIClORtAS MllUNOCO. TNC 90,0-10.00 lffO,O!li0.00 
VRhff VISTARl:HT, £NC. 379.000.00 716.'310.00 
WT Vf\l t\NT C'ORl•ORATIOM {>,210.00 112/i25.{l(I 
Wl!ll PHJLW6.8.COM, rNC. 11,272.00 IS,780.7.? 
\\'EBW PHlLWfj).CO>.t, fNC. WAXRANTS IS .. H9,106.00 
\YtN \Vl!LL.E.~ CNUUSlRIES t~C. 19,100.00 4,0'.10.lO 
WISE \VlSE 55,295.00 
V.'LCQl'f Wit.CON Di;:f'OT INC. 110,000.0(1 l,S7l ,000,00 
\YPI WATERFRONT PHILS.,INC. !05,000,00 J9,37SJJO 
\\'l'l\V WATEJI.FROITT PJHLS,, INC, WARRANT 41S,0-00.00 522.QO 
X XtJRFASll\."C'. 161,000.00 29,655,00 
ZB ZB 1,000,000.00 

TolJ~ 2 l53 "'II 094 S 5JB 7?4 860 

DEALR.R'S ACCOUN1" 

2,000 

6S 

411 

400 

27,l}OQ 

1-14,000 

100,000 

,.. 

5,000 

7 971 

CUr\LO.ING S~CUH.ITl[S CORPORA TlON 

STOCK l'OSJUO~ P[R LOCA'flON RlWOR'r 
At: of IJiecitmbi:<r JI, 182◄ 

PHIL. CENTRAL UEPOSJTottV 

11,HIS.OU 19,)J49 
'45,000.00 46,)~0 

1,549,400.00 15,184,12(1 
IS,000 47,800.00 lSS,SOtl 

'18.~4.00 191,697 
10.0tl l0,2'80 

l,1JIJ,7JO,QOO.OO J,595,217,000 
}.HO.OD 3,001.~ 
1,000.oa 29,JOO 

67,620,00 S,1115.)'20 
40,000.00 2,931,000 
66,000.00 4,GSJ,000 

JI00.00 62,i20 
30,000.00 G,5Jl4,0.00 

1,61:5 32,074,00 1106,6'61 
)0,000.00 5.SlO 
20,000.00 UI0,200 .,1 24,268.oa J6,64S 
37,000.00 276,li{>Q 

1,610,000.QO 2,157,400 
46,0-00.00 41,400 

1.100.{)0 
190,000.QO '5,100 
20,000.00 2,700 
4,785.00 6,ltti 
1,785.0(1 ' 518,000 ll,77:5.nO 17,IIJK,62:5 

l.5J4,Stl0 78.1WO.OQ 4.:Jl,i,OOQ 
12,020.ClO 758.462 

K!,l,'280 141,000.00 89).130 
7,G06JIO 273,Al6 

762,000.00 tS7,4S2 

l,6.?0,000.00 
20,11137,itlO.-OO SfU'l'.S 

100,000.~lO 61,000 
1,oao.-00 7'MOO 

335,000,flO 
521,000.00 lM,700 

:5,000.ClO ,.,oo 
250.-00 HO 

90,0ilO.OO 1~<1.01'10 
l89,000 479,0M,tlO '105,110 

6,250.\JO J l2,62S 
ll,27.U0 l :i.1~1 

8,5'1':.1,4<16:00 
21 l9,2CO.OO 4Ml 

55,195.00 
110,000.ao 1,573,000 
10.s,oao.oo )9,J7!i 
4.35.000.00 522 

, 10 Hil!l,ElOO.ao Jtl,51.S 
1,(1(10,'(ltli)_QQ 

71107!510 l lfiO 1111746i9 56i?511J!lt!ll 

IN VAULT TRANSFER. UJ1Flr:£ IN TRANSIT 

-

-
-

-
800.00 6"!1,800 -

-

-

-

S4J10 IOK,'lllO 
S0.'10 640 

24:00 '" 

-

-

~,, ''' tr.J 1 49 



SCHEDULE VD 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 

REVISED SRC RULE 68 
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Current Ratio 
2024 2023 

Total current assets p 61,685,173 p 58,072,226 

Total current liabilities 22,331,992 17,822,574 

Current ratio 2.762:1 3.528:1 

Quick Ratio 

2024 2023 
Total liquid asset p 59,315,294 p 55,734,670 
Total current liabilities 22,331,992 17,822,574 

Quick ratio 2.656:1 3.127:l 

Working Capital to Total Asset 

2024 2023 

Working capital p 39,353,181 p 40,249,652 
Total Asset 120,044,302 116,784,372 

W ork:ing capital ratio 0.328:1 0.345:I 

Solvency Ratio 

2024 2023 
Net income (loss) after tax+ Depreciation p 1,307,337 :P (3,659,313) 

Total liabilities 27,273,922 25,601,605 

Solvency ratio 0.048:1 (0.143): l 

Debt-to-equity Ratio 

2024 2023 

Total liabilities p 27,273,922 :P 25,601,605 

Total equity 92,770,380 91,182,767 

Debt-to-equity ratio 0.294:1 0.281:1 



SCHEDULE VII 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 

REVISED SRC RULE 68 
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Asset-to-equity Ratio 

2024 2023 
Total assets p 120,044,302 p 116,784,372 

Total equity 92,770,380 91,182,767 
Asset to equity ratio 1.294:1 1.281:1 

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio 

2024 2023 
Pre-tax profit (loss) before interest p 1,970,557 p (5,324,343) 
Interest expense (1,114,904) (1,076,384) 

Interest rate ratio -1.767:1 4.947:1 

Profitability Ratios 

a.) Return on asset ratio 

2024 2023 

Net income (loss) after tax p 1,505,613 r (4,056,375) 

Average assets 118,414,337 116,784,372 

0.013:1 (0.035):1 

b.) Return on equity ratio 

2024 2023 
Net income (loss) after tax p 1,505,613 p (4,056,375) 

Average equity 91,976,574 91,182,767 

0.016:1 (0.044):1 

c.) Net Profit Margin 

2024 2023 

Net profit (loss) after tax 1,505,613 p (4,056,375) 

Revenue 6,575,050 -949,604 

0.229:1 4.272:1 



RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION 
For the Reporting Period Ended December 31, 2024 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Unit 061Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hipodromo Street Circuit Makati, Brgy. Carmona Makati City 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning ofreporting period 

Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to Unappropriated 
Retained Earnings 
• Reversal of Retained Earnings Appropriation/s 
• Effect ofrestatements or prior-period adjustments 
• Others 

Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to Unappropriated 
Retained Earnings 
• Dividends declaration during the reporting period 
• Retained Earnings appropriated during the reporting period 
• Effect ofrestatements or prior-period adjustments 
• Others 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as asjusted 

Add/Less: Net Income (Loss) for the current year 

Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or 
loss during the reporting period (net of tax) 
• Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends 

declared 
• Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to cash and 

cash equivalents 
• Unrealized fair value adjustment (market-to-market gains) of financial 

instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
• Unrealized fair value gain of Investment Property 
• Other unrealized gains or adjustments to retained earnings as a result of 

certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS 
• Sub-total 

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or 
loss in prior reporting periods but realized in the current 
reporting period (net of tax) 
• Realized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to cash and 

cash equivaJents 
• Realized fair value adjustment (market-to-market gains) of financial 

instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
• Realized fair value gain oflnvestment Property 
• Other realized gains or adjustments to retained earnings as a result of 

certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS 
• Sub-total 

F 

150,561 

2,151,327 

620,092 

150,561 

469,531 

1,505,613 

2,151,327 



RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION 
For the Reporting Period Ended December 31, 2024 

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Unit 061Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hipodromo Street Circuit Makati, Brgy. Carmona Makati City 

Add: Category C.3: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or 
loss in prior reporting periods but reversed in the current 
reporting period (net of tax) 
• Reversal of previously recorded foreign exchange gain, except those 

attributable to cash and cash equivalents 

• Reversal of previously recorded fair value adjustment (market-to• 
market gains) of financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL) 

• Reversal of previously recorded fair value gain of Investment Property 

Reversal of other unrealized gains or adjustments to retained earnings 
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS 

• Sub-total 

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) 

Add: Category D: Non-actual losses recognized in profit or loss 
during the reporting period (net of tax) 
• Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) 
• Sub-total 

Add/Less: Category E: Adjustments related to relief granted by SEC 

andBSP 
• Amortization of the effect ofreporting relief 

• Total amount of reporting relief granted during the year 
• Others 
• Sub-total 

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded from the 
determination of the amount available for dividends distribution 
• Net movement of treasury shares (except for reacquisition of 

redeemable shares) 
• Net movement of deferred tax asset not considered in the reconciling 

items under the previous categories 

• Net movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities related to 
same transaction, e.g., set up of right of use of asset and lease liability, 
set-up of asset and asset retirement obligation, and set-up of service 
concession asset and concession payable 

• Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain {loss) 
• Others 
• Sub-total 

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION 

(645,714) 

(176,183) 
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For BIR 
Use Only: 

BCSI 
Item : 

BIR Form No. 

1702-RT 
January 2018(ENCS) 

Page 1 

1 For Calendar 

Republic of the Philippines 
Department of Finance 

Bureau of Internal Revenue 

Annual Income Tax Return 
For Corporation, Partnership and Other Non•lndividual 
Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Enter all required information in CAPITA L LETTERS. Mark applicable boxes with an 'X'. 
Two Copies MUST be filed with the BIR and one held by the taxpayer. 

Fiscal 3 Amended Return? 4 Short Period Return? 
5 Alphanumeric Tax Code (ATC) 

I 

Reference No : 462500065666394 
Date Filed : Apri l 30, 2025 04:43 PM 

Batch Number : 0 

1~111 
1702-RT 01/18ENCS P1 

2 Year Ended (MM/20YY) Yes ' No Yes No 
i IC055 - -· --] rMinimum Corporate Income TaxlMCiTl-i 

t.1 .. 212024 ........ J IC010 V llio MEST!f..E~RPoRAJ:ION IN GENERAL 1 

Part I - Background Information 

6 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) llooo l-[333 ··· 1-[333 _·,.··1 -raoo · 
' I 7 RDO Codel[O_~~ . 1 

8 Registered Name (Enter only 1 letter per box using CAPITAL LETTERS) 
-·· ¥ ·- ~•v-- •••,-•¥•-,,.,;•••V.,-,~- ~··. - --·- ·-- -·. ---···--·-·· "'""" .... ) 

!CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP 

' ' 
--··· ······- . ·--·- ·-- -- ···-······- - ........ -..... ... ,- .......................... 
9A Registered Address (Indicate complete registered address) 

UNIT 061 LEVEL 3 AYALA MALL CIRCUIT HIPPODROMO MAKATI CITY I 

; 

9B Zipcode [ ~?07 I 

1 O Date of Incorporation/Organization (MM/DD/YYYY) 1[03/07/1979 
•... ····-'" .. 

11 Contact Number 112 Email Address 

'ioii3229 
.•. ········-·· j l[cuaioefugseccorp@yahoo.cCJrn __ :~::=::] --·· -· ···--· ·-"".,_ • -•~u~ --~· 

13 Method of Deductions Itemized Deductions (Section 34 Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) - 40% of Gross Income [Section 34(L), 
(A-J), NIRC] NIRC as amended by RA No. 9504] 

Part II - Total Tax Payable (Do NOT enter Centavos) 

14 Total Income Tax Due (Overpayment) (From Part IV Item 43) .. oJ 
15 Less: Total Tax Credits/Payments ( From Part IV Item 55) 

. ·•······ _5,?1.,6..1 .. 9] 16 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) /Item 14 Less Item 15) (From Part IV Item 56) ····· ···· ··is21:§19)] 
Add Penalties 

17 Surcharge 

18 Interest _OJ 
19 Compromise 01 
20 Total Penalties (Sum of/tems 17 to 19) IL -- . ci l 
21 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpayment) (Sum of Item 16 and 20) 

If Overpayment, mark "X" one box only (Once the choice is made, the same is irrevocable) 

To be refunded To be issued a Tax Credit Certifi cate (TCC) r. To be carried over as tax credit next year/quarter 

We dedare under the penalties of perjury, that !his annual return has been made In good faith, verified by us, and to the best of oor knowledge and belief, is lnJe and correct pursuant to U1e provisions of the NaUonal 
Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and the regulations issued under authority lhereot. (If Aulhoriud Reoresentalive, ,,tt,'lch authoriz:i l ion letter and indic,'lltJ TINJ 

22 Number of 
1--Sig-n-,1-uc-,-0,-.,- pn- ·n-t,-d-n-,m- ,-o-f P- ,-.,-,d-cn_U_P,-in-,1-pa-lOffi= ,cc-,-,A-u-lho-n-·z,-d-R-,pr- ,-,-,n-ta-tiv-,--+----- S-lg_n_at_u,-, -0,-e,-p-nn-,c-,-. -,m- ,-o-fT-,c-,-,u-oc-,/-As-~-st-,n-,-T,-,a-,-ur-or-----l Attachments 

Title of 
Signatory I'------- _J TIN l'---------'I 

T1Ue of 
Signatory 

Part Ill - Details of Pavment 

TIN ,-------1 i 4 i 

Particulars I Drawee Bank/Aaencv Number Date /MM/OD/YYYYJ Amount 
23 Cash/Bank Debit Memo I l I 
24 Check I I 
25 Tax Debit Memo 

26 Others /Specifv Below) 

II l I l 
Machine Validation/Revenue Official Receipts Details (if not filed with an Authorized Agent Bank) 

I 

Stamp of receiving Office/AAB and Date of 
Receipt (RO's Signature/Bank Teller's Initial) 

ol 
oj 

o] 



BIR Form No. 
Annual Income Tax Return I 11~11 1702-RT 

Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individua l Taxpayer Subject Only to 
January 2018(ENCS) REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Page 2 
1702-RT 01/18ENCS P2 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Name .. .,. .......... '" •·· ... ,.., .. _ ................... _ .. _ .... •••••••·.,••m.-••---•• 

[ooo 
_ .,, 

' Hiii · - l- f:i3:i 1-{099_"· .. ~- I rcuii.Lc:iPiNG SECURiTiES cc:iRP 
•·•···· ............................................. 

Part IV • Computation of Tax (Do NOT enter Centavos) 

27 Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees I: 243,26/ 

28 Less: Sales Returns, Allowances and Discounts 

~ 29 Net Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees (Item 27 Less Item 28) 

30 Less: Cost of Sales/Services 
' 

7 

31 Gross Income from Operation {Item 29 Less Item 30) L.. . . __ (1 ,073,156) j 
···-···· 

93,156 ! 32 Add: Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Final Tax ..................... ,.,- ···-· 

33 Total Taxable Income /Sum of Items 31 and 32) 
, .. ............ ___ ,._ ·······-· 

·.·(g~iJ,ooiiiJ 
Less: Deductions Allowable under Existing Law 

34 Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI 
Schedule I Item 18 / I 4,600,520 1 

35 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI DI Schedule II Item 5) 

36 NOLCO (only for those taxable under Sec. 27/A to CJ; 
Sec. 28/A}/1) & (A)/6)/b} of the tax Code) (From Part VI DI 
Schedule III Item BJ 

37 Total Deductions (Sum of Items 34 to 36) 4,600 ,520 1 

OR {in case taxable under Sec 27/A) & 28/A)/1/l 

38 Optional Standard Deduction (40% of Ite m 33) 11. oJ 
" ····--· ···- ····- ···········-· '" 

(5,580,!;2oj] 39 Net Taxable lncome/(Loss) (If Itemized: Item 33 Less Item 37; If OSD: Item 33 Less Item 38/ l 

140 Applicable Income Tax Rate IL ~ .- .. -- . .,_ ... ,_ 3.?J'!, I 
41 Income Tax Due other than Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) (Item 39 x Item 40) 0 -
42 MCIT Due (2% of Item 33/ 0 

43 Tax Due (Normal Income Tax Due in Item 41 OR the MCIT Due in Item 42, whichever is higher) 
(To Part II Item 14) 0 

Less: Tax Credits/Payments (attach proof) 

44 Prior Yea~s Excess Credits Other Than MCIT 1- ,-· ... --~~~--~---···" '" 509,29Q] 
45 Income Tax Payment under MCIT from Previous Quarter/s 

,- --· - - _ .. 
0 

46 Income Tax Payment under Regular/Normal Rate from Previous Quarter/s ·- ............ ~ "" ""'2] 
·-

47 Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year (From Part VI Schedule IV Item 4) 
c · ·----~-- - - ............. _..,...~. ~--- -::::ill 

48 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previous Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307 
'---

1,160 

49 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarter 
r-- ... .. ,.,. ..... ..,, .................. ,-.... - .,., 

11,169 

50 Foreign Tax Credits, ii applicable 
. -~· - -- ....... -:~ ::::ill - ----- ·- ·- -- -· -

51 Tax Paid in Return Previously Filed, ii this is an Amended Return 0 
··-· 

l '"'='="'°'"""' - -· 
52 Special Tax Credits (To Part V Item 58) ! 0 

Other Credits/Payments (Spocify) 

5:ir-- -- .... , -r o,h ,,. =·······- -· - - ~ -----· --~ . -~-- --.-~~ . - --.:::J IL .. --- -~) 
54] - ----· ·-·· - -- - . ·- J IL - OIi 

e 
. ····-···· ·-. ·-·-----··· 

I! .. 521 ,619 55 Total Tax Credits/Payments (Sum of Items 44 to 54) (To Part II Item 15) 
'". '" ,···· 

__ .., _______ , ___ -- -··- ··-. 
(s2{sis.D 56 Net Tax Payable / (Overpayment) /Item 43 Less Item 55)) (To Part II I tem 16) 

••••n•• 

Part V • Tax Relief Availment 

57 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions {Item 35 of Pan IV x Applicable Income Tax Rate/ ii] 

58 Add: Special Tax Credits (From Part IV Item 52) ol 
r··· -··· ············- ,,_ ·······························-·········· ·······-- gJ 59 Total Tax Relief Avallment (Sum of Items 57 and 58) 



BIR Form No. 

1702-RT 
January 201 B(ENCS) 

Page 3 

Annual Income Tax Return 
Corporation , Partnership and Other Non-Ind ividual Taxpayer Subject Only to 

REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) I Registered Name 

1702-RT 01118ENCS P3 

j 

Schedule I - Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheetls, if necessary) 

1 Amortiza lions 

2 Bad Debts 

3 Charitable Contributions 

4 Depletion 

5 Depreciation 

6 Entertainment, Amusement and Recreation 

7 Fringe Benefits 

8 Interest 

9 Losses 

1 O Pension Trust 

11 Rental 

12 Research and Development 

13 Salaries, Wages and Allowances 

14 SSS, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Other Contributions 

15 Taxes and Licenses 

16 Transportation and Travel 

17 Others (Deductions Subject to Withholding Tax and Other Expenses) [Specify below; Add additional 
sheet(s), if necessarv} 

a Janitorial and Messengerial Services 

b Professional Fees 

c Security Services 

e[urii:i'riEs 
~()~~ICE.S.IJPPUE:~······ 

h[IN~URANCE 

l,OT.HERS 

i.1 LREPAIR? 11,ND MAINTENANCE 

i.3 [SUBSCRIPTION AND .PERIODICALS 

1.4 [MEETiNGS AND ·coNFERENCES 

1.5 (BANK CHARGES 
.,,.._,.._. ,. 

i.6 [MISCELLANEOUS 

jla Total Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of Items 1 lo 17i) (To Part IV Item 34) 

0 

o1 
0 

0 

138,2i2 ! 
.. al 

0 
........... iJiif7~) 

. 0 

0 

272,336< 

0 

1,21 0,797 

133,252! 
................................... 114,104] 

171 HQQ i 

Oj 

............ 19J .. g9D! 
0: 

·· ·················· >~?:isi1 
..... 322,407] 

106,566 

79,707 

199,701 

8,571 

.. 2,914J 

J: (i;s,sgsl 

I! 

Schedule 11 • Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheetls, if necessary) 

Description Legal Basis Amount 

; -- - l 

2[ 7: 
3) J O' 

I: -- OJ 

5 Total Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of Items 1 to 4) (To Part IV Item 35) Oj 



BIR Form No. 
Annual Income Tax Return 

1111 fl~~~~llll 111 1702-RT 
Corporation, Partnersh ip and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer Subject Only to 

January 2018(ENCS) 1702-RT 01/18ENCS P4 
Page 4 

REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) I Registered Name 
,ooo l-1~3~ .. '.-!333 .... J [ooo ····~ ...... ! !iC::tJI\LOF'l1'1~ SECURITIE:5 .. (;()~f' I 

Sch edule Ill • Computation of Net Operat ing Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) 

1 Gross Income (From Part IV Item 33) 

2 Less: Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI Schedule I Item 18) · · ·· · · · ····· ······ · · 4:saa:s2a i 

3 Net Operating Loss/Item 1 Less Item 2) (To Schedule II/A, Item 7A) I, ,Rn.520)[ 

Schedule IIIA • Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (DO NOT enter Centavos; 49 Centavos or Less drop 
down; 50 or more round upJ 

::===============N=e=t =O=p=er=a;:tin:::g::::L=o=s=s==============:' I 
Year Incurred A) Amount ! B) NOLCO Applied Previous Year 

14[2024 5.580.520] 0 

5 2023 ···· 1 5.203,421 j 0 

s' 2022 · ······1 8,493,199J 0 
····· 1 2,589,40~J 0 

Continuation of Schedule IIIA (Item numbers continue from table above} 

C) NOLCO Expired D) NOLCO Applied Current Year 
E) Net Operating Loss (Unapplied) 
{ E ; A Less (B + C + DJ] 

4[. al 
s[ o] 
6' ... o] 

ii] 
8 Total NOLCO (Sum al Items 4D lo 7D) (To Part IV, 
Item 36) 

. Oj 
········ Of .·· . 5,203,421 ] 

0) : 8,493,199] 

0 ! 

!Schedule IV - Computation of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) 

Year A) Normal Income Tax as adjusted 

·91 
oj 

...... aJ 

Continuation of Schedule IV {Item numbers continue from table above) 

D) Excess MCIT Applied/Used in 
Previous Years 

1f 
l a: 

2! o! 
3i o, 

E) Expired Portion of Excess MCIT 

I ·~ oj 
I 61 ,99.1! 

I O! 
Total Excess MCIT Applied (Sumofltems 1Fto 3FJ (To Part IV Item 47) I 

B) MCIT 

4,901 

61,991 

F) Excess MCIT Applied this 
Current Taxable Year 

--

a) 

OJ 
o: 
al 

C) Excess MCIT over Normal Income 
Tax 

4,901 

... ··••··.··•········•···········.· ~i§!!i] 0 

G) Balance of Excess MCIT Allowable 
as Tax Credit for Succeeding Year/s 

[ G ; C Less (D + E + F) ] 

l 4,90J ] 

! . ol 
01 

Schedule V . Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Aqainst Taxable Income (attach additional sheetls, if necessary) 

1 Net lncome/(Loss) per books RSS 653 j 

Add: Non-deductible ExpensesfTaxable Other Income 

I Ii 25.687] 

3 [0 THE~s · . ··: l 60,656 ! 

4 Total (Sum of/terns 1 to 3) • ~41,996 j 

Less: A) Non-Taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax 

5 I INTERESl' A.N_D.DIVIDEND. l(K_OM,E 

s [o THE~s . 

6.11 UNREALIZED MARKET GAIN 

6.2 

6.3 .... ···································································· 

B) Special Deductions 

1[ 
al 

9 Total (Sum of Items 5 to 8) 

10 Net Taxable lncome/(Loss) (Item 4 Less Item 9) 

ES 

I 
Ir---

?,.86~,436 j 
33,664 ! 

72,986 ! 
66.252 , 

I I! O! 

I L o: 

,,,, ,,,.,. 6,522,51 ~j 
I[ .. 



ii, 

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES 
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(Over Remittance) 

Accounting Type 

For Tax Period 
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BIR Form No. 

1702-RT 
January 2018(ENCS) 

Page 1 

Republic of the Philippines 
Department of Finance 

Bureau of Internal Revenue 

Annual Income Tax Return 
For Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual 
Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Enter all required information in CAPITAL LETTERS. Mark applicable boxes with an ·x·. I 11~11 
Two Copies MUST be fifed with the BIR and one held by the taxpayer. 

1702-RT 01/1 8ENCS P1 

1 For Calendar ' Fiscal 3 Amended Return? 4 Short Period Return? 
5 Alphanumeric Tax Code (ATC) 

t1coss I !Minimum Coroorate Income Tax (MCITl ! 
2 Year Ended (MM/20YY) Yes No Yes No 

112/2024 I IC010 V !DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN.GENERAL ··i 

Part I• Background Information 

11000 l-:i:i} __ · __ -_-__ l ·l3)J: ]-[ooo -- "! I 7 RDO Codel!o49 
........ 

,,,,,,,,,] 6 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 

8 Reqistered Name (Enter only 1 fetter per box usino CAPITAL LETTERS) 
~ .... '"'"'"=·~---~- --

,r.11A1 OPING SECURITIES CORP 

f 

I, 
··················-·-•-···· ······························-···· ...... -·- --······ ........................ ,.,_,,, .. ) 

9A Reqistered Address (Indicate complete registered address) 

1UNIT 061 LEVEL 3 AYALA MALL CIRCUIT HIPPODROMO MAKATI CITY ! 
! 
f ----

98 Zipcode !1207 
···-····· 
··-·······--- - .J 

1103/07/1979 
•--w•==, --~-

i 1 O Date of Incorporation/Organization (MM/DD/YYYY) 

11 Contact Number 112 Email Address 

[1083229 
......... , ... , ___ ........ 

! f!::~al~pings~~~o;p@yahoo.com 
·--· -····-·····-·-·-· ·••··••····· .. ··-· -· 

J - . --••···-•-- •-••----•- NN,, ··---~ ' .-.. '""''·-·-
__ ., ___ ,,,,,_, ____ 

13 Method of Deductions Itemized Deductions [Section 34 Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) - 40% or Gross Income [Section 34(L), 
(A-J), NIRC] NIRC as amended by RA No. 9504) 

Part II • Total Tax Payable (Do NOT enter Centavos) 

14 Total Income Tax Due (Overpayment) (From Part JV Item 43) oJ 
··-·-·· ············-· · ····-

_-_ - j ;1 ~:.iso] 15 Less: Total Tax Credits/Payments (From Part IV Item 55) 
·································--··· 

16 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) (Item 14 less Item 15) (From Part IV Item 56) 
············· ·················- ···· 

-- ____________ (512,~50)] t... 

Add Penalties 

17 Surcharge I 0 - <,oll, ----- •••• --···-····- .... 
18 Interest 0 

" ~ -··· nn ,~.,., --
19 Compromise 0 

-----·-- -~-- -- .... _. ____ 

al 20 Total Penalties (Sum of Items 17 to 19) ; 

21 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpayment] (Sum of Item 16 and 20) 
,---··-·-·-- ------ -

· ,s1 a;4so)J 

If Overpayment, mark "X" one box on ly (Once the choice is made, the same is irrevocable) 

To be refunded To be issued a Tax Credit Certificate (TCC) _._ To be carried aver as tax credit next year/quarter 

r..ve dedare under the penalties of perjury, that this annual return has been made In good faith, verified by us, and to the best of our kno'Nledge and beMef, Is true and correct pursuant to the provisions of U1e National 
ntemal Revenue Code, as amended, and the regula tions issued under authority lhereor. (If Authorized Represen/a/iw,, attach authorization lollor nnd indiGato TIN) 

22 Number of 

Signature over printed name of President/Principal Officer/Authorized Representative Signature over printed name of Treasuror/Asslstant Treasurer Attachments 

I 
I ITIN:[ Titleof I --Title or I' ! I TIN 11: 4 ! Signatory I Signatory I 

Part Ill • Details of Pavment 
Part iculars I Drawee Bank/Aoencv Number Date (MM/0O/YYYYl Amount 

23 Cash/Bank Debit Memo I. 
···-· ··-

I ! -··-···-

----- I ol 
24 Check I l I ! I o j 

25 Tax Debit Memo i i I ol 
26 Others (Soecifv Below) 

t . -· I I J I ! l ·········-·-··-··- ol 
Machine Validation/Revenue Official Receip ts Details {if not filed with an Authorized Agent Bank) Stamp of receiving Office/AAB and Date of 

Receipt (RO's Signature/Bank Teller's Initial) 



BIR Form No. 

1702-RT 
January 201 B(ENCS) 

Page 2 

Annual Income Tax Return 
Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer Subject Only to 

REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Name 

j !CUALOPING SECURITiE~C::Q~p 

111~11 
1702-RT 01 /1 SENCS P2 

..... l 
Part IV - Computation of Tax (Do NOT enter Centavos) 

27 Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees ........... -.-_ 2If2sx! 
28 Less: Sales Returns, Allowances and Discounts 

29 Net Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees (Item 27 Less Item 28) 

30 Less: Cost of Sales/Services 1.316d?l ) 

31 Gross Income from Operation (Item 29 Less Item 30) 

32 Add: Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Final Tax . 93,156 j 

33 Total Taxable Income (Sum of Items 31 and 32/ (980,000) ! 

Less: Deductions Allowable under Existing Law 

34 Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI ·-·-· ----· ------- 4_,_6_~_4_'7q_ElJ 
Schedule I Item 18) 

35 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI al 
Schedule I I Item 5) 

36 NOLCO (only for those taxable under Sec. 27(A to CJ; 
Sec, 28(A/(1) & (A/(6/(b) ofthe tax Code/ (From Part VI DI 
Schedule Ill Item 8) 

37 Total Deductions (Sum ofltems 34 to 36) _ 4,634,706 1 

OR fin case taxable under Sec 27/A) & 28(A/(1)1 

38 Optional Standard Deduction (40% of Item 33) .................. Oj 

39 Net Taxable lncome/(Loss) {If Itemized: Item 33 Less Item 37; If OSD: Item 33 Less Item 38) ·· _ ___(5 ,6_1_4,_7_D6.TI 

140 Applicable Income Tax Rate I I 2s1% I 
~ 

41 Income Tax Due other than Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) (Item 39 x Item 40) __ , ___ 
=•-·· - ·n-•-n •'<•--· 

___ oj 
42 MCIT Due (2% of Item 33) 0 

43 Tax Due (Normal Income Tax Due in Item 41 OR the MCIT Due in Item 42, whichever is higher) 
! 0 (To Part II Item 14) 

Less: Tax Credits/Payments (attach prool) 
',, .. ,,_ •-ew, ----· ., ..... ~.•· ' 

. 509,290 1 44 Prior Year's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT 
- ----·- --- -·a 

45 Income Tax Payment under MCIT from Previous Quarter/s 
I "' 

.. ·---~~-- ....... ~- -···· -~·--·"= 
46 Income Tax Payment under Regular/Normal Rate from Previous Quarter/s I 0 

·------- ·-·-· ·····-·· -· .... :fil 
47 Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year (From Part VI Schedule IV I tem 4) 

I ·--·--·· --··1 
48 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previous Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307 1,16Qi 

r 
____ ,_ .... ------·.,,, ··-==· •--½-••· ... ,,,.., .. ·al 49 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarter L... --w--- - -- -·-· ··--·--·----

50 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable 0 
-·---· . 

51 Tax Paid in Return Previously Filed , if this is an Amended Return 0 
·-· ·-· 

52 Special Tax Credits (To Part V Item 58) 0 

Other Credits/Payments (Specify) 

53J . -·. --- . ,. , , ,Vh,C """""'''"" ... .. .... ,,., ..... "··- ......... -. ... ~ .. -. .. l IL ---.·--· - - OJI 
~ ... I II ·- · 

0 
-·-··· ·-· ·- --- ... ,_. 

@ i 

55 Total Tax Credits/Payments (Sum of Items 44 to 54) (To Part II Item 15) [ 510,450 

I: 
- __ .. ,_ -··-. 

j !;1C>,1!;0)] 56 Net Tax Payable / (Overpayment) (Item 43 Less Item 55)) (To Part II Item 16) -· ............ ·······-····· 

Part V - Tax Relief Availment 

57 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Item 35 of Part IV x Applicable Income Tax Rate) 0 
···············-. 

58 Add: Special Tax Credits (From Part IV Item 52) 0 

59 Total Tax Relief Avallment (Sum of Items 57 and 58) 0 



BIR Form No. 
Annual Income Tax Return I 11111 1702-RT 

Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer Subject Only to 
January 2018(ENCS) REGULAR Income Tax Rate 

Page 3 
1702-RT 01 /18ENCS P3 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) I Registered Name 
· ········-"·' ' i]oao ·· "} [333 .-[333- 1 l[cU~()~l.~.G. sE·§ q~ifi§~ .. ¢2.~.F' ..... 

--·-· ···-···· .. ......... ... ·-···· 
i t DDO ... 

Schedule I - Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheeVs, if necessary) 

1 Amortizations 

2 Bad Debts 

3 Charitable Contributions 

4 Depletion 

5 Depreciation 

6 Entertainment, Amusement and Recreation 

7 Fringe Benefits 

8 Interest 

9 Losses 

10 Pension Trust 

11 Rental 

12 Research and Development 

13 Salaries, Wages and Allowances 

14 SSS, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Other Contributions 

15 Taxes and Licenses 

16 Transportation and Travel 

17 Others (Deductions Subject to Withholding Tax and Other Expenses) {Specify below; Add additional 
sheet/sJ, if necessary] 

a Janitorial and M essengerial Services 

b Professional Fees 

c Security Services 

{:oi=i=icE suioPLIEs ·. 

g.F'()ST/\GETELEPHONEAND COMMUNICAT.ION .. 

i.2 [rRiiiN iNGANDSEMINAR 

i.3 [SUBSCRIPTION. AND Pl=RIODiCALS 

1.5 [BANK CHARGES 

i,6 \MISCELLANEOUS 

l1e Total Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of Items 1 to 17i) (To Part JV Item 34) 

I •• 

] 

"""···1 

' 
! 

·········' 

.. .i l 
I 1 

-1; 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1~R.272 

0 

0 
............ 1:109:194] 

····· ·· ······················ ·····.······. §1 

0 

0 

1,210,797 

133.252 

171 ,899_' 

Ol 
197,00QJ 

Oi 

3~?,75!] 

. 322,40?] 

79,707 ] 

.. 199,701! 

8,571 ] 

11,071 1 

165,5951 

Schedule II - Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheeVs, if necessary) 

Description Legal Basis Amount 

i Di 
2[ J 

__ OJ 

5 Total Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of Items 1 to 4) ( To Part IV Item 35) Oj 



BIR Form No. 

1702-RT Annual Income Tax Return 
January 201 B(ENCS) 

Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer Subject Only to 1111 ·~~~1111111 
Page4 

REGULAR Income Tax Rate 1702-RT 01/1 BENCS P4 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) I Registered Name 

,ooo H 333 ........ ;~ 333 7 -:ooo ! 1fC:U.ALc:>PIN <3 .. ~.E.CURITIES CORP .J 
Schedule Ill - Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) 

1 Gross Income (From Part JV Ite m 33) /980.0001 

2 Less: Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI Schedule I Item 18) 4.634.706 

3 Net Operating Loss(llem 1 Less Item 2) (To Schedule IIIA, Item 7A) ,~ fi14.7061 

Schedule IIIA • Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (DO NOT on/or Centavos; 49 Centavos or Loss drop 
down; 50 or more round up} 

:===============N=et=O=p=e=r::;at;::in:::g::L=o=s=s=============::::::11 
Year Incurred A) Amount ! B) NOLCO Applied Previous Year 

412024 I ' 5,614/06 : 0 

5.2023 0 

6j2022 ···· 1 8,493,199 j 0 

7;2021 .. 1 0 

Continuation or Schedule IIIA (Item numbers continue from table above) 

C) NOLCO Expired D) NOLCO Applied Current Year 
E) Net Operating Loss (Unapplied) 
[ E = A Loss (B + C + 0 ) ) 

oj 
···01 

oJ 
8 Total NOLCO (Sum ofltems 40 to 70) (To Part IV, 
Item 36) 

Di 
Oj 5.203.421 1 

........... o) ...... 07 
2,589,409] 

!Schedule IV - Computation of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) 

Year A) Normal Income Tax as adjusted 

1 .202.2 ..... . 
···················01 

2 2021 I 
3 ill 

Continuation or Schedule IV (Item numbers continue from table above) 

D) Excess MCIT Applied/Used in 
E) Expired Portion of Excess MCIT 

Previous Years 

1! 0 I o! -- ... ... .. 
2! o, [ 61 ,991 : 

'" , . ~- ··-·- .. .. -·~·~···~, 

3! .. Oi r= O! 
Total Excess MCIT Applied (Sum of/terns 1F lo 3F) ( To Part JV Item 47) 

: 

L 
i 

[ 

B)MCIT 

4.9011 

C) Excess MCIT over Normal Income 
Tax 

4.901 

···· ·············· ·······61,s~i l l 
DI 0 

F) Excess MCIT Applied thl5 G) Balance of Excess MCIT Allowable 
as Tax Credit for Succeeding Year/s Current Taxable Year I G = C Less (D + E + F) l 

.o] t 4,9.o.D 

0\ 
~ ... 

01 
.. ~-· ... i ... o: i DI 

-~ -- _.. ___ 
·a 

.. OJ 

Schedule V - Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Against Taxable Income (attach additional sheetls, if necessary) 

1 Net lncome/(Loss) per books 

Add: Non-deductible ExpensesfTaxable Other Income 

3.1 !DEPRECIATION ROUA- PFRS .16 ..... 

3.2 !INTEREST EXP_ENSE - LEASE LIABILITY 

4 Total (Sum of Items 1 to 3) 

Less: A) Non-Taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax 

5 j INTEREST. AND DIVIDEND INCOME 

s l oTHERs ... 

:: I ~'"" ~=:;~: '""~"' '°"" 
6.4 ACTUAL RENT EXPENSE - PFRS 16 

B) Special Deduclions 

er-· 

9 Total (Sum of Items 5 to 8) 

10 Net Taxable lncome/(Loss) (Item 4 Less Item 9) 

l 
I 

!II 
ill 

[ 

I i: 
I Ii 

I 
I I: 

Ii 

............... 821 ,1~6 : 

25,687 ) 

. .......... 60,656 ! 

...... -... 652, 

3,481,178 ! 

3,041 ,337 ! 

2,868,436! 

33,664 ! 

72.985 i 

66,252 ! 

o: 
0: 

............ 6,~2}.sisJ 
(5,6.14,71l~)] 
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 

TIN 

Name 

RDO 

Form Type 

Reference No. 

!Amount Payable 
(Over Remittance) 

!Accounting Type 

For Tax Period 

Date Filed 

rrax Type 

FILING REFERENCE NO. 

: 000-333-333-000 

: CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP 

: 049 

: 1702 

: 462500065386788 

: -510,450.00 

: C - Calendar 

: 12/31/2024 

: 04/15/2025 

: IT 
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